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Chartered Accountants Charesd Aot ASSOCIATES

fald) CEHNARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditor’s Report

The Shareholders of Nepal Bank Limited

Report on the Audit of the Finnncial Statements

Opinion
We hisve audited the financial statements of Nepal Bank Limited (the *Bank”), which comprise the statement
of finaneinl position as at Ashadh g1, 2080 (luly 16, 2023), and the statement of profit or loss, statement of

other comprehensive imcome, statement of changes in equity and statement of vash flows for the year then
etded, and notes to the financial stntemints, ineluding o summary aof significant aceotinting policles.

In our opinion, the sccompanying finoncial statements present fuirly, in oll material respects, the Ahancial
position of the Bunk as at Ashadh g1, 2080 (July 16, 2023), and of its financinl performance and its cash
flows foe the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financlal Reporting Standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepil Standards on Anditing (NSAs), Our responsibilities under
those standards are further deseribed in the Anditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of aur Report. We are independent of the Bank in accordunce with the FCANS Handhook
of Code of Ethies for Professionul Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are relevant tn
our audit of the financial statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other cthical responsibilitics in
sccordance with these requirements and 1ICAN's Hundbook of Code of Fthics for Professional Accountants,
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Emphasix of matter

We driw attention to the following matters us reflected in Notes to the finaneial statements. Our opinion is
not modified in respect of those matters.

1. Asincluded in Note 4.16 Other Asséts of linnnclal statements total net anreconciled inter-branch balunee
is NPR 1,096.75 million as of Ashadh 31, 2080.

2. The bank his not obtained confirmution regarding long pending receivables of government transactions
of NPR 400.66 million and TU Peusion reimbursable of NRs. 8.64 million outstanding as of Ashadh a1,
2080, The sume is included in Note 416 of the financial statements,

Key Audit Matters

Koy nudit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of the most significant in the
audit of the financial statements of the current perfoc. These matters were adidressed in the context of the
sudit of the fingocial statements ss 0 whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide o
separate opinion an these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the keyv audit
matters to be communi@ated in our report,
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S.N | Key Audit Matters Anditor's

1. Interest Recognilion Qur nudit appmnch reymﬂnn verification of
The interest a:n;::}m oi‘ uﬁ;:‘ bank h.}; to be recognized | the process of interest recognition included:

Ot #n weery s an lowing the Interest Income

Recognition Guidelines 2019 Is:’ﬁm! by NRB, Though | 4 Obtaining a clesr understanding of the
an acerual basis of income recognition i preseribed in | rocess of accrual of interest inoomckiml
genernl, the guidelines require suspension of interest oans and' advances in the Core Hanking
mmig?ﬂn on an nrermal basis for loax;: ond ndvum;o- Software of the bank.

with overdoe of more than 12 months whereas, for '

loans and advances with overdue interest/installment b FI:T I‘:::s‘;ns:z?l:gl:f e::i:teﬁ m‘:::::d“ ‘::}
for 3 to a2 months, interest recognition on an aeerual the collateral and have test:checked the
basis is Umited on the hasis of the result of collatern) | AT

testing an specified. Given the lack of system capobility l\‘«'nlm:u:’m?gc;é:fmﬁ (ﬂgmm;’og '
1o suspend recogrition of income on the basis of the ) 4

overdue status of the loan and fair value of collateral as | ¢, Test ehuek of the Interest income booking
well as o review of fair valuation of collaterul on regular with manual ecamputation,

busis, manunl intervention will be tequired In the

interest rvcoumlul(;) process und ':cnce u;ﬁ}e a risk oJ d. L‘:":‘oh:l"‘ bg:nuw l‘“}"‘““l‘nm fll::m::p::
Improper  application  of 1 guidelines  an yWETS

determination of the Fuir Valoe of the collateral. This | provided and the basis taken by the
iy, iy turn, have an effeet on the recognition of management to arrive at the excess interest
interest inconie of the bank. payable.

Other Habilities include excess interest payable to

lonn customers reversing the interest income which

may viry when the bank commences the refund.

This may, in tuen, luve at effect on the recognition

Of the interest income of the bank.

"Thus, we have considered it o key audit matter.

2 | Investment Valuation, Identification, and | Our audit approach regarding verification of
Impairment the process of investment  valuation,
Invostment of the bank comprises investment in | entification, ind impairment included:
government. bonds, T-bills, developnient bonds, and 8. Review of the investmoent of the hank and
mvestment  in quoted and unquoted equity | 4 havion having: nference 1o NFRS
instraments. The valustion of the aforesiid securities &

p iseued by the Accounting Standurd Board
has been done in complinnee with NFRS ¢ and NRB of Nepal and NRB Dirvctive 4 read with 8,
Directive no. 8. The investment in the government and i
NRB bhonds and T-bills should be recognized an | b, We assessed the nature of the expected
reporting date on Amortizad cost basis wheress other cush flow of the investments as well as the
Investments (0 equity instruments, other than those business  model  adopted by the
heid tor trading, should be vulued at Fair Value management on the basis of available
through Other Comprehensive Incomee. cvldence/ciycmmlmcu and ensured that
Given the varieties of treatments recommended for the th clnmfi;nﬂr_::;‘ |h:rnat:’:~u;}mm'§;: ﬂowu
valuation of investment based on the nature of cash T T ey 'af holding the
flow, the business model adopted the complexity of x;nml l:::nafp ment tntention ol b
caleulntions and the significance of the amount XS ees
involved in  such investments, same has  beéen | ¢ For the investment valuation that ks done at
considered a Key Audit Matter in our aundit, amortized cost, we checked the EIR and

amaortization schedule on a test basis,

d. For the investment valued through OC! for
quoated investment, we ensured that fair
valnation has been done at the olosing
transaction rate in NEPSE as af 16.07.2023
or by applving appropriate  valoation
teehnique  and  for  the  uniuoted
investiment, fair valuntion has been done
basod on the book value derived from the
Tntest available financial statements of the
investees entity,

R Impalrment of Loans and Advances Our auchit approach regarding verification of

As per NRE Directive 4, the hank shall measure
im Joss on loans and advances at the higher ;.

Inpairment of losns und advances included:

o\ Bewfesy of the overdue statuyof loans and
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S.N | Key Audit Matters Auditor's
* Amount derivied us per norms preseribed by Nepal advances by abtmmng data from  the
Rastra Bank for loan loss provisioning; and system and wmatching the same with the
NRS 2.2 repart.
* Amount determined as per purs 5.5. of NFRS g,
read with carve out Issued by Institute of Chartered b. Suhn:plohtml_h filea Weee: reviewd, u:}w;:g
Accountants of Nepal dated 18 July 2022, adopting other things, from the perspective of the
Insurred Loss Model utilization of loans and advances for the
intended purpose hy way of soruting of
A§ per the rormy prescribed by NRI, the provisionatn | financia) statements, secount movemient,
‘l:dmcrﬂx‘dh :‘:j Shmﬂmf bt"dcmwd tm‘l;nnl nng secount Wrnover, ete.
VAneey on the overdue status of loans an
advances as well as the utilization status of the facility, | € Espected furure vash flows from  the
statys of security, borrower's wherenhouts, ete. individually significant loans and advances
with an indication of impairment are
As per NFRS 9 rond with carve oot issmed by the | geecsed on the hasis of the realizable value
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal dated 18 of  collnteral  securities  based  on
July 2ozz, impaivment of loans and advances should management estimate.
be mde oo an dmdividon) impaitment basis for Joans
and ndvances that kee individually significant and | & Grovping of bomogensous groups of loans
collective impairment basis for homogeneous groups of was nssessed on the basis of the nature and
lnans that are not eonsidensd Individually significant. purpase of loans and data of historical Tass
- experience in portfolios sre assessed on the
On individoal impairment, the amount of the Joss is hasis of past due data from the syxtem ix
mmf@d as the di"ﬂm(‘! bml lhe mu’ mrmnn “v" as d.'. M lmn loss m;wuinu‘ uf th‘a.
amonnt and the present value of estimated future cash defiried group in the past.
flows, Under collective lmpairment, the loss js
determined after taking into account the Historcal
Loss Experience in portfolios of similar credit risk and
Management's expeviencid judgment as i whether
current ceonpmic and credit conditions are such that
tive netuil evel of inherent Josses at the reporting date
is lke to be greater or less than that suggested by
historical experience.
Given the fact that impairment of loans and advances
under incurred loss model riquires assessment of
futire cash flows as well as historical loss expenionces
of portfolios, Further, impairment of loans and
advances under NRB norms for loan loss provisioning
will require assessment of the overdue status of Toans
and advenges and proper utilization of loans for the
intendled purposis. Henee, the assessment of the
availability =nd  accuraey of required  dotn for
impatrment of loans and advances under incureed loss
midel as well as NRB provisioning noems are regarded
i klty audit mtters,

4 Information Technology General Controls Our audit gpprosch regarding the Information
IT controly with respect to recording fransactions, | Technology of the bank i based upon the
peneruting vuriowy reportse in compliance with NRB | Information  Technology  Guidelings 2012
guidelives, and other cu,:plianm with ';egulntcm are | issued by NREand it included:
uny amportant part of the process, Sach reporting s
highly dependent on the effective working of Core | & UUnderstanding the coding system adopted
Banking Softwire and other allied systems. :!‘y’“tht hank for wvarious categories of
We have considersd this o key nudit matter as any
control lapaes, valldation fallures, incorrect input data, b, ‘g‘;‘m l;t;?nﬁt& ‘:dc f"‘::,"’ ‘:{,:‘b’: %mmi:
and wrong extraction of data may sesult in wrong cxtm:i‘ion of :he ﬁ‘:wngisl infn:mtilm
::;;mh_:% z duta to the manugement, shareholders, and statensents from the [T system b the
and regulationm Xy

¢. Checking of the user requirements for any
changes in the regulations/ policy of the
bank
<% d, Reviewed the reports generated by the
- £E0 b system on o sample basis. We verified the
/s‘/ %_ || A% % interest income and expense - hooking
> %/ i~ 1% [ 7S
," ‘/‘ .T':- , . ffl
k".vn 1 / e \ A\ w%’/)
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S.N | Key Audit Matters Auditor’s Response

regarding loan and deposit on @ test basis
with the CBS or the bank.

e We relied on the IT audit conducted by the
bank.

. We verified the provisioning of e losn
and ndvances based on agimg on the test
cheek hasis as on 16,07.2023

Information Other than Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Mitnagomint Is responsible for the other information, The other information comprises the infermation
ineluded in the Management Report, Report of the Director’s Report, and Chairman’s Statement but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, Such information fs expected to e made
available to us after the date of this auditor's veport.

Our opinfon on the finuneial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assuranee copclusion theteon. In connection with our aundit of the finsncial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in dinng o,
conaider whether the other [nformation 5 materially inconsistent with the financial statemnents or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materinlly misstated.

When we read spch other information, f we conclude that there is & material misstutement therein, we arge
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management s responsible for the preparstion and fair presentation of the financial statements in
seeordunce with Nepal Financinl Reporting Standards and for sueh internal control as munagement
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstutement, whether due t frand oy error.

In preparing the Ainancial statements, munsgement is reaponsible for assessing the Bank's ability to continue
a% 2 going cotcern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
bosis of sevounting unless management sither intends to Tiquidate the Bank or to cense operations ov has no
vealictic alternative but to do sa.

Those churged with Governance ure responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Finuncial Statements

Our objectives ure to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financiul stotements as n whole ure free
fram material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opittion. Reasonable assurnnce is o high level of assurance but is not & guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with NSAs will always detect @ materinl misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or it the uggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to Influence the economic decisions of users taken on the busis of these financlal stotements,

A part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we axercise professional judgment and maintain professiosal
shepticism throughout the andit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, deslgn and perform wudit procedures responsive to thase risks, and obtain audit evidenve that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basia for our opinion. The rsk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for ane vesulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, fovgery, mtentionul omissions, wiscopresentations, or the override of intermal control.

o Obtain an understunding of internal conteol relevant to the andit iy order to design andit procedures that
are approprinte in the circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the
offectiveness of the Bank's internal control.

* Byl appropristeness of sccounting policies used and the reasonablencess of m:countmg estimates
i dlosures made by the management, i i\
s‘ o r
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o Conclude an the approprinteness of the management’s tse of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material nncertainty exists related to events pr
conditions that may cast significant doubt an the Bank's ahility 1o continue as & going concemn. 1f we
conclude that o materfol uncertainty exists, we dre required to draw attention in our anditer's repott to
the related disclosures in the finnncial statements or if such disclosures are ipadequate, to modify our
apinian, Our concluslons are based on the gudit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s repart.
However, future events or donditions may c¢ause the Bank to cense to continue as 4 going concemn,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other raatters, the planned scopoe
and timing of tho audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control thut we identifs during our nudit.

We ulso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant erhical
requirements regarding independence; and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
thut moy reasonubly be thoaght to bear on our indeépendence, and where applicabile, related safeguards.

From the mattess communicatod with those charged with governance, we deternine those matters that were

of most significanee in the audit of the financiyl statements of the curvent period and are therefore the key
nudit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes puhhc
tiselosure about the matter or when, in extremely mare ¢ircumstances, we determine thit o matter should not
be communicated in our report becuusé the ndverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the puhlic interest benefits of such communication.

Report on requirements of Banks and Financial Institutions Act, 2073, and Company Act,
2063

We have obtained satisfactory information and explanations ssked for, which to the bess of our knowledge
und bellef were necessary for the purpose of our andit; the returns received from the hranch offices of the
bank, though the statements sre independently not sudited, wero ndogquate for the purpose of the audit! the
finangial staterments including the statement of financial poxition, statement of profit or loss, statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows, notes to the financial
stiatements including a summary of significant uccounting palicies have been prepared in all material respect
in accordance with the provisions of the Company Act, 2063, and they are in agreement with the baoks of
accounts of the Bank; und the accounts and records of the Bank are properly maintained in accordance with
the prevailing laws.

To the best of our information and according to the expinnations given to us, in the course of our andit, we
observid that the loans have been written off as specified; the business of the Bank was conducted
satisfactorily, and the Bank's transietions were found 1o be within the scape of its authority. We did not
come seross cases of aecountingsrelated froud and cases where the bonrd of directors or any director or any
office bearer of the Bank Jas acted contrary to the provisions of law or exused lpss or dumage to the Bank or
jation of the funds of Bank.

P
(e \Oﬁ
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TIW 1
CA. Jagnnnath Upndhya.\ CA. Sunir Kumur ﬂ\\nmpl
e Proprietor Managing Partner
Kuber N, Bhatturai & Co. (AN, Upadhyay & Co, S.AR. Associates
Place: Kathmundu, Nepal
Date: December 20, 2023
LDIN: 2a12200A0003 74 BONw UDIN: 231220CA001141XvMg UDIN: 2912200A00109hyQ4C




Statement of Financial Position
As at 31st Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)
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Figures in NPR
Caah and cantt paudvalanty 41 8.056,502.983 &,351 401,650
Due from Nepal Rasies Bank 42 19,748 872262 6.841.253.280
Fraceman| with Bank and Fimanda Instilutions 43 582,511,250 461,033,517
Donvative Finanoa Instruments 4.4 8,504,260 491.900.856
Othae Trading Assets 45 116,040,866 106,254,481
Losna end sdvances to BFis a6 5,400 650 700 £,955,622 816
Laans and sivancss o customers a7 178,556 889,017 171,480,501 Bed
Invesiment securilis 48 65,946, 182,687 40,578,841 Q92
Gurrent tay ansets 49 1,202 %66 540 1,950,369.280
Investmont i sutsidsties 4.10 - -
Invosimant n associatos an 2,736,263 348 1.808.054 228
Investmunt propery ER ) 198, 109,606 108, 545,560
Propsrty: and Equipmant 413 13,303,822.774 13,243,150,670
Goodwill =nd Inanaible asssls 4 34,844,265 36455219
Datamad Tax Asasts 415 - -
Othee assets 1186 Q088,189,165 9,962.240,038
Tou Assats o738 .007 awoorrarare
Liabiiitien ‘Nota Current Yoar Previous Yeor
Tue to Bank and Financial Insttutuns 447 1275441704 1,080,678.643
Do to Nepal Batsrs Bank 418 70,600,600 5,858 o0 046
Darwvative Finanssa! instrumsn| 419 8,541,000 508,072.543
Deposits from custaners 4.20 244 513,000,703 165 074,140,263
Harrowings 41 202,300,000 7,304 175,000
Current Tax Ligbiiben 49 - -
Provislons 422 247 590,916 66,980, 539
Daforred Tooe Liabilibos 4.5 4 DE2 584 452 4269152 531
Othar liabilibes 423 6,257.810,167 5,917.390,293
Dabt secuniios ssued 424 3,454 351,608 3453811042
Subordinatsa Liabilites 425 - -
Equity Current Yoar Previous Year
Snarg Capital 4.26 14,684 027 426 94,406,904 ,631
Sharn Premiom - -
Rolained Eamings 380 859 3422196158
Rusurves 4.27 29,828,250 921 17,035,512.550
Tutal equity atfributable (2 equify holders 6522571808 35,483.613.348
Ngn-cuntrutrfa interest
Total Equity 3,522.671.008 35463813348
Comingant Lintililes and comimimenst 428 85,550.208,.058 T6 M08 160 485
Not Asnots Villue Per share 240 56 24617
The accompanying natan ace Integrat part of these financal statements. As per cur teoort of eyen date
Hom Bahadur Khadka Samata Pant (Bhatta) Board of Directors CA.Narendm Bhattaral
Chilg! Financs Officer Act Ghigt Exscutive Officss Or.Chandra Bahadur Adhikan Prmtipal Partosy
Charman Kubar N 8hnttrnl 8 Co,
Chanumd Accoentants
Dhirsj Ral ptiost
Chiaf Maragur ”ng”mfmﬁ"&‘“nm,, CA. Jagannath Upadhyay — CA. Sunic Kumar Dhungel
Sadhana Ghirary Progintor Managing Partiiec
Vivisk SJ8 Rana JN Upadhayay & Co. S.AR: Associates
Vishnu Kumar Agravwal Charterad Accountants Chardared Acoountants
Rochan Sheestlin
Dato: 2050-00-04

Flaoe: Kathmandu, Nepal
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Statement of Profit or Loss
for the year ended 31st Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)

Figures in NFR
Particular Note Current Year Previous Year
Interest ncome 4.29 25,158,116,908 16.439,050,427
Interast expanse 4.30 15,751.164,273 9,725,363,4583
‘Net Interest income 9,406,952,635 6,714,586,974
Foes and commission income 4.31 1.019.377.814 968,755,635
Feas and commission expense 4,32 188,311,060 81,812,510
Net fee and commission income 831,066,754 886,943,125
Net Interest, fee and commission income 10,238,019,389 7,601,530,100
Net trading Incomes 4,33 78,642.010 198,141,763
Other oparating income 4.34 309.231,092 270,185,989
Total operating income 10,625,892 491 8,069,857,851
Impairment charge/(reversal) for foans and other josses  4.35 1.113.348.200 853,658,796
Net operating income 19,512,544,291 7.216,199,055
Operating expense
Personnel expensas 438 3,885,515,968 2.451,901,259
Other Operaling expenses 4.37 916,767,870 787,734,063
Dapreciation and Amortisation 428 375.915.989 338,089,823
Operating Profi 4,334,244 464 3,637,463,869
Non operaling [ncome 4.39 77.261.406 218,327,299
Non operating expense 440 - -
Profit before income tax 4,411,605,870 3,856,791,168
Income tax axpanse 441
Currant Tax 1,177.445.202 983,650,423
Deferred Tax (203.418.327) (50,136.823)
Profit for the period '3,437,578,995 2,923,277,569
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 3,437 578,985 2,923,277,569
Nor-controlling interests - -
Profit for the period ‘3,437 578,995 2,923,277,569
Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Basic EPS 23.39 20.29
Diluted EPS 23.39 20,29
The accomannying notes are Integral part of thess (Insncal stslemenls Al pef our report of even date
Haom Bahadur Khadka Samasta Pant (Blatta) Board of Directors CA Narendra Bhattaral
Chuet Finance Officer At Ghisf Executive Officar Dr.Chandra Bahadur Adhikan Principm Pannes
Chalrmian Kubme N Bnattaral & Co
Charored Accouniants
Ohjraj Ral s;a'??:u’mnr Khatn
Chwol Mannger Gangn Pragud Gywall CA. Jagannath Upadhyay  CA, Sunir Kumar Dhungel
Sadhang Ghitine Prop=istor Managing Partner
Vivok SJB Rang JN Upadhaypy £ Ta. S AR, AssoCiates
Charterad Aconuntants Chartersd Avcountants

Vishinu Kumar Agrawal
Rochan Shrestha
Date: 2080-08-04
Place: Kathmandu, Nagal
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Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31st Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)

‘Particular
Profit for the year
Other Comprahansive Income, net of income tax

Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss

Galns ( (Losses) from Investment In equity Instruments measured
at fair value

Galns / (Losses) on revaluation
Actuarial Gains / (Losses) on defined benafit plans
Income {ax relating to above ilems

Net other Comprehensive Incoma that will not be reclassified to
Profit or Loss

b

Items that are or may be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Gains (Lossaes) on cash fiow hedge

Exchange gains (Losses) ansing from transiationg financial assets
of foreign operation

Income tax relating to above tems
Reclassify to Profit or Loss

Net other Comprehensive Income that are or may be reclassified
to Profit or Loss

Share of other comprehensive Income of assoolate accounted as
par equited method

Other Comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax
Total Comprehensive income for the year
Totai Comprehensive income attributable to!

Equity shareholder of the bank
Non controlling interasl

Current Year
3,437,578,995

1,511,339,134

(1,455,170,409)
(16,850.617)

39,318,107

3,476,897,102

3,476,897 102

fiare den MIAES
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Fjgures in NPR
Pravious Year
2,923,277,569

(45,374,232)

(373,991 469)
125.809.710

(293,555,991)

2,629,721,578

2,628,721 578

2,629,721,578

Total Comprehensive incoma for the period

The nccompnnying notes ire Integrol port of hese inancal stalemenis. An por our repor of even dale

Hom Bahadur Khadhka Samatz Pant (Bhatta) Board of Directors CA Narendra Bhattaral

Cral Finance OMos At Chiet Exocutve Officer Dr.Chandra Buhadur Adhilar Brincipdl Paetin
Chnlrran Kuboe N Bhaltarn & Co,

Chartorod Accountanis

Momber

Dhiraj Rol Uttar Kumar Khatrl

Chial Manager Garkin Prasid Oy CA Jaganmath Upadhyay CA, Sunir Kumar Dhungs!
Badharia Ghirmire Propristcr Managing Parner
Vieak SJB Rana JN Upadhayay & Co S AR Ansociates
Vishnu Kumas Agrawnl Chartered AGcountams Chartered Accauntanls
Hactan Shiestha

Date! 2080-00-04

Place Kathmandu, Nepsl
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Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31st Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)

- Frgures m NPR
Pamiculars Current Yaar. Pravious Year
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest maonlvod 20,043 574 217 15,952,104,926
Faes and uthel income reteived 1Mas7T.H14 Q65 %14 006
Dividuhd recaived - -
Recaipts from other apsmting activities 460,060 494 1,234 078,007
Inlerest paid (15,378,205 555} 19,725,363, 453)
Cummission s fess paid (188,341,080) (79.471,040)
Cash paymanl lo employses {3,885,515.968) (2.053 558,304)
Oihee expence pant {3,146 622 542) (782 714, 061)
 Oporating caxly flows bafors changss |n operating sssts and lnbilities {1,786,332.600) 5,485,960,188
(Increase)/Decroane in operating assots
Due trom Nepa! Rastra Bank {12,907.518.972) (47,362,268)
Facomenl with Bank and Financial ingtitufions (91477 633) 3,828,391, 858
Other tratling assets 47355621 {4,079 B&6)
Losns d@nd advances o bank and financial instituticns B50.963,077 378,960,562
Laant snd slvanoes to tustomers {7,078,067.160) (A3, 822,047 786)
Othet gssets 1,869 680,365 879,804 661
Incrasss/| Decrsase) ) coarmtinyg lalliss - -
Due o bank and financia inssitutions 184 762 061 281,653,535
Due 1 Nepal Rastrs Bank {5,818 568.046) (173,772,805)
Duposit from cuatomurs 48,437 550 420 33,282, 765410
Horrowings {7,041,575,000) 7,004, 175,000
Qb lubilllg;s ) 151,468, BTT) (1,004,492 600)
Not cash flow from aperating activities before tax paid 16,852.314,560 14,494 344,880
Inobme taxus paid (443,170.838) (923,B50,423)
‘Mot cash flow from oparating activities 16,430,143,724 13,511,194,447
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment secunties (15,967 340 646) (12,826 548 534)
Receipts fom agie of Invéaimant secuntes - 3 208,318
Purchase of property and equipment (1310,466,0485) (458,855 922)
Recolpt from ihe unle of propenty and egilipennd . 529370l
Acgushtion of imangibile assels . {5,900,258)
Fucaipt from e sale of mlangible sssets 3.580.834 -
Purchase of invesiment proparies (80,564 .009) {Z617,364)
Rocaipt from (e sale of mvestmant proparties . 31,564 660
Intstest racaived 3,220434077 -
Dividend received 15074 014 13,768.570
‘Net cash csad in investing activities {12,938.271,775) (13,242,516,770)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Reculpt fren laasue of debt securitins - -
Ropoymont of dot secunbes
Autlapts fram wsun of subondinated lpbiifies - -
Ropaymuant of subocdmated liahility -
Racaipts from saue of shames - -
Dividends paid 1,440,580 483 (379,102,759)
Interes| pald (298,40 566} -
(thze recepil/paymant . (2,378,520 534) (26,361, 787)
Net cash fran financing sctivities 11,235,970,617) (405,4604,540)
Not Increane {decreass) in cosh ond cash equivalents 2,264,901 530G (136,786,870}
Canh nng st wguivaents at Beginiog of fhae pedod 6,391 §01 6553 #5628 34 522
Effoct of exchiungo (wte fluctuntions on cash ang cash eatlvaanty hejo s o
" Cash and cashi nquivatants at the end of the pariod - B,636,502.953 6,391,601,653
The accompanying nates are Integot part of these finnncal statemente AL per puf reoun of sven date
Hom Bahadur Khadka Samata Pant (Bhatta) Beoard of Directors CA Narendra Bhattaral
Cruef Finance Officur Art. Chusf Executve Offices: Dr.Chandra Bahadur Adhikari Princigs Parines
Chairman Kubes N. Brabtars & Co,
Charterod Accountonts
Mombar
D’“"‘i Rai Atsar Kumas iKhatrl
Chval Manngal Ganga Prasad Gypwall CA. Jagsnnath Upadhyay  CA, Sunir Kumar Dhungel
Sadhano Ghiming Progrieic: Meanaging Partne
Vishnu Kamar Agrawal Oharterad N:anumarus Chartored Accountants
Rouhan Shrestha
Datw: 20800904

Place Kathmandu, Negal
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 31* Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)

1 Reporting Entity

Nepal Bank Limited (‘the Bank') is a public company incorporated under the Companies Acl, 2063 and
licensed by Nepal Rastra Bank to canduct banking transaction as a "A” Class Financial Institution under the
Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073, The Bank has its Corporate Office at Dharmapath, Kathmandu,
Nepal Bank Limited, the first bank of Nepal was established in November 15, 1937 A.D (Kartik, 30, 1994).
It was formed under the principle of Joint venture (Joint venture between Government & general public).
The bank has been providing banking through its branch offices in the different geographical locations of the
country. Nepal Bank Limited has the following abjectives:

» Deliver robust and ethical banking services and cantributing to the economic development of Nepal.
+ Focus on increasing the customer base and market share.

«  Maximize the potential/efficiency of bank’s staff.

* Focus on minimizing the risk assoclated with the business.

+ Focus on providing the world class business solutions.

« Focus on increasing the sustainable profit.

Authorized capital of the Bank is NPR. 15,000,000,000 (150,000,000 shares of NPR 100 each) out of
which Issued and Paid-up capital is NPR. 14,694,022,928 (146,940,229.28 shares of NPR.100 each). The
sharaholdar composition of the Bank (as of 2080-03-31) is as follows.

| SN. l anhip Percent
1 [ Government of Nepal | S1%
2 Gueneral Public 49%
i lnl_ul A 'Amf'"'"
2 Basls of Freparation

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting except the Cash flow
information which is prepared, on a cash basis, using the direct method. The interest income Is recognized
on sffective interest rate mathod as allowed by carve-outs on NFRS.

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income shown In two separate statement, the Statemant of Changes in
Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Notes to the Financial Statements, The significant accounting
policies applied in the preparation of financial statements are set out below in peint number 3. These policies
are consistently applied to all the years presented, excep! for the changes in accounting policies disclosed
specifically.

21 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRS) adopted by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) of Nepal.

The financial statements have been prepared on the going-concern basis.

The Bank presents its statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidity as per the format specified
in directive 4 of unified directive 2080 issued by NRB.

“aitas Tiaden 2008
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Reporting period and approval of financial statements

Reporting Penod is a period from the first day of Shrawan (mid-July) of any year to the last day of Ashad
{mid-July) of the next year as per Nepalese calendar,

The current year period refers to 1* Shrawan 2079 to 31" Ashad 2080 as per Nepalese Calendar
corresponding to 17" July 2022 to 16 July 2023 as per English Calendar and corresponding previous year
period is 1* Shrawan 2078 to 32 Ashad 2079 as per Nepalese Calendar corresponding to 16" July 2021 to
16" July 2022 as per English calendar

Particulars Nepalese Calendar ‘English Calendar
Current Year 2079/80 2022/23
Previous Year 2078/79 2021/22
1" Shrawan 2079 to 17" July 2022 to
Current Year Period 31 Ashad 2080 16" July 2023
1"Shrawan 2078 to 16% July 2021 to
Previous Year Period 32™ Ashad 2079 16" July 2022

The Financial Statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 2080/09/04. The Bank
prepared s financial statements In accordance with the requirements of Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presanted in Nepalese Currency (NPR) (rounded to the nearest Rupea unless
otherwise stated), which is the company’s functional currency. The Bank determines the functional currency
and items Included in the financial statements are measured using that functional currency,

Use of Estimates, assumptions and judgments

The preparation of the Bank's financlal statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses. asseis and llabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, as well as the disclosure of contingent liabllities. Management believes that the
estimates used in the preparation of the financlal statements are prudent and reasonable estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on-an ongoing basis.

Information about assumptions, estimatas and judgement used in praparation of financial statements for
2079/80 that have a significant nsk of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are:

* Key assumptions used in discounied cash flow projections.

*  Measurement of defined benefit obligations.

* Provisions, commitments and contingencies.

* Determination of net realizable value.

« Determination of useful life of the property, plants and equipment.

« Assessment of the Bank’s ability to continue as going concarn.

» Determination of fair value of financial instruments: and property and equipment.
* Impairment of financial and non-financial assets.

* Assessment of current as well as deferrad tax.
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2.5 Changes in Accounting policies

26

2.7

2.8

29

210

3.1

The Company has consistently applied the accounting policies to all periods presented in these financial
statements except for new or revised statements and interpretations implemented during the year. The
nature and effect of new standards and Interpretations are discussed in note that follows,

New standards in Issue but not yet effective

Anumber of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been issued
by IASB after the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates. Those become applicable when
ASB Nepal incorporates them within NFRS.

New Standards and interpretation not adapted

All Nepal Accounting Standards and Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and other interpretation issued by
ASB of Nepal have been adapted while preparing financial statements.

Discounting

Non-current assets and liabilities are discounted where discounting is material. Interestincome and expenses
have been recognised an unwinding of financial assets and liabllities respectively,

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial llabilities are offset and the net amount reported In the Statement of Financial
Position, only when there is a legally enforceable right o offset the recognized amounts and there is an
inlention to settle on a net basis or o realize the assets and settie the liabilities simulianeously. Income and
expenses are not offset in the Statement of Profit or Loss, unless required or permitted by Nepalese Financial
Reporting Standards or Interpretation (issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC) and Standard Interpretations Committee (SIC)) and as specifically disclosed in the
Significant Accounting Policies of the Bank.

Materiality and Aggregation

Each material class of similar items Is presented separately in the Financial Statements. Items of dissimilar
nature or function are presented separately, unless they are immaterial as permitted by the Nepal Accounting
Standard = NAS 1 on 'Prasentation of Financial Statements’.

Notes (o the Financial Statements are presentad in a systematic manner which ensures the understandability
and comparability of Financial Statemants of the bank. Undarstandability of the Financial Statements is not
compromised by obscuring material information with immaterial information or by aggregating material items
that haye different natures or functions,

Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied by the Bank In the preparation of these financial slatemants are
presented below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless stated
otherwise.

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements are prepared on the hislorical-cost basis except for the following material items In
the statement of financial position:

« Investmenl properly is measured initially at cost and subsequently al Fair value:
» Liabiliities for cash-settled, share-based-payment arrangements are measured at falr value.

“aitas Tiaden 2008
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* Darivalive financial instruments are measured at fair value.
» Defined benefit schemes, surpluses and deficiis are measured at fair value.
« Impairment of financial asset is measured at fair value and related disposal cost.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are based on historical
expenience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believad to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The estimates and judgements
used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously evaluated by the Bank. Any revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively in the period in which the estimates are revised and
in the future periods. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexily, or areas where
assumptions and estimales are significant o the financial statements are disclosed In notes that follow,

3.2 Basis of consolidation

The Bank does not have any subsidiaries or special purpase antities over which It exercises control. Hence,
only standalone financial stalement is prepared.

33 Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash squivalents include cash at vault and money at call and short notice, unrestricted balances
with NRB, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes In value. Cash and Cash equivalent are
measured al amortized cost in the statement of financial position,

Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared by using the ‘Direct Method' in accordance with NAS 07-
Statemen! of Cash Flows.

34 Financial assets and financial liabilities
Recognition

The Bank initially recognizes a financial asset or a financial hability in its statement of financial position when,
and only when, It becomes party 1o the contraclual provisions of the instrument. The Bank initially recognize
loans and advances, deposits, and debt securities/ subardinated liabilities issued on the date that they are
originated which is the date that the Bank becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
Investments In equity instrumants, bonds, debenture, Government securities, NRB bond or deposit auction,
reverse repos, outright purchase are recognized on tradge date at which the Bank commits to purchase/
acquire the financial assets. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are recognized on trade
date. All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognised at their cost value and are subsequently
presented as per NFRS based on the respective classification,

Classification
i. Financial Assets

The Bank classifies the financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost ar fair value on
tha basis of the Bank's business model for managing the financial assets and the contraclual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. The two classes of financial assels are as follows!

1. Financial assets measured at amortized cost
The Bank classifies a financlal asset measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

a) The assetis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows and

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
paymenls of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

v aifis ufadaq Too
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Financial asset measured at fair value

Financial assets other than those measured at amortized cost are measured at fair value. Finanaial assets
measured al fair value are further classified into two categories as below!

a) Financlal assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held for trading or
are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction costs are directly
altributable to the acquisition are recognized in profit or loss as Incurred. Such assets are subsequently
measured at fair value and changes in fair valug are recognized In Statement of Profit or Loss,

b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading and at the initial recognition, the Bank makes
an Irrevacable election that the subsequent changes in fair value of the instrument is to be recognized in
other comprehensive income are classified as financial assets at fair value though other comprehensive
income. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value and changes In fair value are recognized in
other comprehensive income..

Financial Liabilities
The Bank classifies the financial liabilities as follows:
a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial llabilities are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held for trading or are
designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction cost is directly attributable
to the acquisition are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred. Subsequent changes in fair
value Is recognized at profit or loss

k) Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

All financial liabilities other than measurad al fair value though profit or loss are classified as subsequently
measlrad al amontized cost using effective interest methad.

Measurement
Financlal assets at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Bank can make an irrevocable election (on an Instrument-by instrument basis) to
present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive Income pertaining to investments In
equity instruments. This election is not permitted If the equity investment is held for trading. These elecled
investments are Initially measured at fair value. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes In fair value recoanised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the "Fair Value Resarve’. The cumulative gain or loss is nol reclassified to Statement of Profit or Loss on
dispasal of the investments.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

* It has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

« on initial recognition it is part of a partfolio of identified financial instruments that the bank manages
together and has a recent actual patiern of short-term profil-taking; or

* itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging Instrument or a financial guarantse.

Dividends on these investments in equity instrumeants are recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss when the
Bank's right 1o recelve the dividends is established, it s probable that the economic benefits assoclated with
the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment

“aitas Tiaden 2008
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and the amoun! of dividend can be measured reliably, Dividends recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss
are included in the 'Net Trading Income' line item.

Financlal assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments In equily Instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Bank irrevocably alects on initial
recognition to present subsequent changes In fair value in other comprahensive Income for investments In
equity instrumenis which are not held for trading.

Debl instruments that do nol meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above) are measured
at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are
designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria
may be designaled as at FVTPL upon initial recegnition if such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or
losses arising on re-measurement recognised in Statemant of Profit or Loss. The net gain or loss recognisad
in Statement of Profit or Loss incorporates any dividend ar interest 2arned on the financial asset and is
included in the 'Nel Trading Income' line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recoanised when the
Bank's right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the econemic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not reprasent a recovary of part of cost of the investmeant
and the amount of dividend can he measured reliably.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are ¢lassified as at FVTPL when the financial liabllity is held for trading or is designated
as al FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

+ it has been incurred principally for the purpose of rapurchasing it in the near term; or

« on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of Identified financial Instruments that the Bank manages
logether and has a recent actual pattern of shori-term profit-taking, or

« it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument

Afinancial liability ather than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

* such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistancy that
would otherwise arise;

» the financial liability forms part of a Bank of financial assets or linancial liabilities or both, which Is managed
and Its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Bank's documented risk
management or Investment strategy, and information about the Bank is provided Internally on that basis;
or

* it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and NFRS @ permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with NFRS 9

Financial llabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or lusses arising on re-measurement
recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss. The net gain or loss recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss
incorporales any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the 'Other income’ ling item.
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However, for nan-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change
in the fair value of the financial liability that Is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss, in which case these effects of changes in credit risk are recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss.
The remaining amount of change In the fair value of liability Is always recognised in Statement of Profil
or Loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liabllity's credit risk that are recognised in other
comprehensive Income are reflected iImmediately in retained earnings and are nol subsequently reclassified
to Statement of Profit or Loss.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accaunting periods. The carrying amaounis of financial liabifities
that are subsequently measured al amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method.
interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an assetis included in tite 'Interest Expenses’ ling
ftem.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating intsrest expense over the relevant period. The effective interast rate is the rate thal exactly
discounts estimated fulure cash payments (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial liability. or (where appropriate) a shorter period. to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

De.recognition
i. De.recognition of financial assets

The Bank derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights ta the cash flows from the financial
assel expire, or when It transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are ransferred or in which the Bank neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not refain contral of the financlal asset.

Any interest in such transferred financial assets that qualify for de-recognition that is created or retained by
the Bank is recognized as a separate assel or liability. On de-recognition of a financial assel, the differance
between the carrying amount of the asset, and the sum of

(i) The consideration received and
(i) Any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in
retained eamings.,

The Bank enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its Statement of Financial
Position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a
portion of them. If all or substantially all risks and rewards are retained, then lhe transferred assets are
not derecognized. Transfers of assets with ratention of all or substantially all risks and rewards include, for
example repurchase transactions.,

ii. De-recognition of financial liabilities

Afinancial liability is derecoanized when the abligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or explired.
Where an existing financial liability Is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing lability are substantially maodified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference
between the carrying value of the arniginal financial liabllity and the consideration paid Is recognized in
Statemant of Profit or Loss.
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Determination of fair value

‘Fair value' is the pnce that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) inan
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement dale in the principal or, in its absence,
the most advantageous market to which the Bank has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects
its non-performance risk,

When available, the Bank measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market
for that instrument. A market is regarded as active If transactions for the asset or liabllity take place with
sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information an an ongoing basis. If there is no quoted price
in an active market. then the Bank uses valuation techniques that maximize the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technigue Incorporates all of the
factors thal market participants would take Into account In pricing a transaction,

The fair value measurement hierarchy is as follows:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assels or liabilities.

Leval 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices for
identical or similar instruments in inactivea markets and financial instruments valued using models whare all
significant inputs are observable.

L.evel 3 portfolios are those where there are unobservable inpuls of the instruments. The inputs are not
based on observable markst dala.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument al initial recagnition is normaily the transaction
price 1.e. the fair value of the conslderation given or received. If the Bank determines that the fair value at
initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price
in an active market for an identical assel or liability (Level 01 valuation) nor based on a valuation technique
that uses only data from observable markets {Level 02 valuation), then the financial instrument is initially
measured at fair value, adjusted 1o defer the difference between the fair value al initial recognition and the
transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is reatgnized In profit or loss on an appropriate basis over
the life of the instrument but not later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market data
or the transacbtion is closed oul In case the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price In an active market for
an identical asset or llabifity (Level 01 valuation), the difference between the transaction price and fair value
is recognized in profit or loss immediataly,

Impairmant

Al gach raporling date, the Bank assesses whether lhers Is objeclive evidence that a financial agsest or group
of financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are impalred. A financlal asset or a group
of financial assets is Impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after
the initial recognition of the assetl(s), and that the loss event has an impacl on the future cash flows of the
assel(s) that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impalred can Include significant financial difficulty of the borrower
or issuer, defaull or delinquency by a barrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by the Bank on lerms
that the Bank waould not otharwise consider, indications that a barrower or Issuer will enter bankruptcy, the
disappearance of an aclive market for a secunity, or other observable data relating to a group of assets such
as adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in the group, or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults in the group. In addition, for an invastment in an equity security, a significant or
prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.
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In case of financial difficulty of the borrowar, the Bank cansiders lo restructure loans rather than lake
possession of collateral. This may involve extending the payment arrangements and agreement of new loan
conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated, any Impairment is measured using the EIR method and
the loan Is no longer considered pas! due. Management continually reviews renegotiated loans 1o ansure
that all critenia are met and that future payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to an
individual or collective iImpairment assessment, calculated using the loan's original EIR,

Impairment of financial assets measured at amortized cost

The Bank considers evidence of impairment for leans and advances measured at amortized cost at both
specific asset and collective level. The Bank first assesses individually whether objective evidence of
impairment exists for financial assets that are individually significant and that are not Individually significant
are assessed on collectively,

if there Is objective evidence on that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the differance between the assel's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of the loss is recognized in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrylng amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Impairment of loans and advances portfolios are based on the judgments in past experience of portfolio
behaviour. In assessing collective impairment, the Bank uses historical trends of the probability of defauit,
the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss Incurred, adjusted for managemant's judgment as to whether
current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than
suggested by historical trends. Default rates, loss rates and the expected timing of future recoveries are
regularly benchmarked against actual cutcomes to ensure that they remain appropriate.

Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realized or has been transferrad Lo the Bank. If In a subsequent year,
the amount of the estimated Impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event oceurring after the
impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account. If a write off is later recovered, the racovery is racognized in the ‘Non-operating
income’.

35 Trading assets

Interest income on all trading assets are considered to be incidental to the Bank's trading operations and are
presented together with all other changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net trading income.

Interest expense on all trading liabllities are considered to be incidental to the Bank's trading operations
and are presented together with all othar changes in fair value of trading assels and liabilities in net trading
income.

3.6 Derlvatives assets and derlvative liabllities

For designated and qualifying fair value hedges, the cumulative change in the fair value of a hedging
derivalive Is recognised in the Statement af Profit or loss in Net trading Income. Meanwhile, the cumulative
change in the fair value of the hedged item atiributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the carrying
value of the hedged item in the statement of financial position and Is also recognised in the Statement of
Profit or loss in Net trading income.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exerclsed, or where the hedge no longer meets
the critena for hedge accounting, the hedge relationship is discontinued prospectively. For hedged items
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recorded at amortised cosl, the difference between the carrying value of the hedged item on tarmination and
the face value is amortised over the remaining term of the onginal hedge using the recalculated EIR method.
if the hedged item Is derecognised, the unameortised fair value adjustment is recognised immediately in the
Statement of Prafit or loss.

Property and Equipment
a) Recognition and Measurement

Property and Equipment are recognized if it s probable that fulure economic benefits associaled with
the assets will flow to the Bank and the cost of the asset can be rellably measured. The cost includes
expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets. Cost of self-constructed assets
includes fallowinygs:

* Cost of materials and direcl labour;

* Any other cost directly attributabie to bringing the assets to the working condition for their intended use;
and

« Capitalized barrowing cost

Propearty and equipmeant are measured at cost (for land using deemad cost at on the transition date) less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss if any. Neither class of the properly and
equipment are measured at revaluation mode! nor Is thelr fair value measured at the reporting date.

Subisequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that the future economic benefits from the expenditure
willl fiow to the entity. Ongoing repairs and maintenance o keep the assets in working condition are expensed
as incurred.

Any gain or losses on de-recognition of an item of property and eguipment is recognized in profit or loss.
b) Capital work in progress

Assels In the course of construction are capltalised in the assets under capital work in progress account
(CWIP). At the point when an asset is capable of operating at management's intended use, the cost of
construction is transferred lo the appropnate category of property and equipment and depreciation
commences. Where an obligation (legal or constructive) exists to dismantie or remove an asset of restore a
site {o its former candition at the end of lis useful life, the present value of the estimated cost of dismantiing,
removing or restoring the site is capitalized along with the cost of acquisition or construction upon completion
and a corresponding liability is recognized.

c) Depreciation

Property and equipment’s are depreciated from the date they are available for use on property on written
down value method over astimated useful lives as detarmined by the Management, Depraciation Is
racognized in profit or loss. Land is not depreciated. Charging of depreciation is ceased from the earlier of
the date from which the asset is classified as held for sale or is derecognized.

The estimated useful lives of significant items of property and equipment for current yéar and comparalive
periods ara as follows:

Class of Assets. Useful Life

Building 20 years

Leasehold Properties As per lease agreement (maximum to 10 years)
Computer and Accessories 4 years

Vehicles 5 years

Furniture, Fixture & Equipment A years

Other Assets 6.66 years

Assets costing less than NPR. 2,000 are fully expensed in the year of purchase.
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3.3 Goodwill / Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite usaful lives that are acquired separately are carrled at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at
the cash generating unit level. Such intangibles are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment continuss to be
supportable. If not, the change In the useful life assessment from Indafinite to finlte Is made on a prospective
basis,

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication thal the intangible assel may be Impaired. The amortisation
penod and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
ecanomic benelits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method,
as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. Tne amortisation expense on intangible
assets with finite lives Is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an Intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the nat disposal proceads and he carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss when the assel is derecognised.

Certain computer software costs are capitalized and recognised as intangible assels based on materiality,
accounting prudence and significant benefits expected to flow therefrom for a period longer than one year.

The estimated useful lives of significant items of intangible assets for current year and comparative penods
are as follows:

Class of Assets Useful Life
Computer software 5 years

3.9 Investment Property

Investment property is the land or building or both held either for rental income or for capital appreciation
or for both, bul not for sale in ordinary course of business and owner-occupied property, The Bank holds
investment property as non-banking assets that has been acquired through the enforcement of security over
the loan and advances.

Non-banking assets (only land and building) are Initially recognised at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition
the bank has chosen to apply the cost mode! allowed by NAS 40- "Investment Property” and since it is not
intended for owner -ocoupied use, a depreciation charge is not raised.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including Iransaction costs. The carrying amountincludes
the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost s incurred. If the recognition
criteria are met; and excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing of an Investment property. Subsequent to
initial recoanition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the
reporting daie. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are inciuded
in the Statement of Profit or loss in the year In which they arise.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of, or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.
Any gains or logses on the retirement or dispasal of an investment property are recegnised in the Stalement
of Profit or loss In the year of retirement or disposal.
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3.10  Income tax

The Company is subject to tax laws of Nepal. Income Taxes have been calculated as per the provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 2058. Deferrad tax is recorded on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts, at the rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date. The ultimate realisation of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future
taxable profits during the periods in which those temporary differences and tax law carry-forwards become
deductible. The Bank cansiders the expected reversal of deferrad tax liabilities and projected fulure taxable
incoma making this assessment. The amount of the deferred tax assels considered realisable, however,
could be reduced in the near term Il estimates of fulure taxable income during the carry-forward period are
reduced.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income lax expense is recognised In the Statement of
Profit or Loss except to the extent it relates to items directly recognised in equity or in other comprehensive
income.

Current Tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year, Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax' as reported In the Statement of Profit or Loss because of items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items thal are never taxable or deductible.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid o the taxation authorities. The lax rates and tax laws used o compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporfing date in the countries where the Bank
operates and generates taxable income. Current income tax assets and liabilities also include adjustments
for lax expecled o be payable or recoverable in raspect of pravious pariods.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences ansing between the carrying amounts of assets and
lrabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for laxation purposes,

Deferred tax Is determined using tax rates (and laws) enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date
and that are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is reallsed or the deferred tax liabllity is
saitled. Deferred tax assels are reviewed al each reporting date and reversed if it is no longer probable thal
the related tax benefits will be realised. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Bank expects, at the reperting date, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assels and liabilities.

Deferrad lax assels are recognised for all deduclible temporary differences, carry forward of unused lax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be ulilised except:

i. Where the deferrad tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

il. In respect of deductible temporary differences assoclated with investments in subsidiaries, assoclates
and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differances will reverse In the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Deferred tax relaling to items recognisad in OCI Is recognised in OCI. Deferred tax items are recognised In
correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive Income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offsel, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation autharity,

3.11  Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities

Bank deposits consist of money placed into the Bank by its customers NPR. These deposils are made lo
deposit accounts such as fixed deposit accounts, savings accounts, margin deposit accounts, call depaosit
accounts and current accounts. Details and further disclosures about deposits have been explained in Note
that follows.

3.12 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the bank has a presant legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, when it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to setlle the obligation and when the
amount can be reliably estimated.

The amount recognised as a provision 1s the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, considering the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. Whan a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is
material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required Lo settle a provision are expecied to be recovered from
a third party, a receivable is recognised as asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there Is:

= a possible obligation that arises from past evenis and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
entity; or

« present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because:

o Itis not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation; or
o the amount of the ebligation cannal be measured with sufficlent reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arnises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-oceurrence of one or more uncertain future avents not wholly within the
control af the entity.

Commitments include the amaount of purchase ordar (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of
assets,

Provisians, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each reporting period

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract.

3.13 Revenue Recognition

Revenue comprises of interest income, fees and commission, foreian exchange Income, cards incame,
Assets disposal income elc. Revenue 1s recognized (o the axtent il Is probable thal the economic benefils
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will fiow to the Bank and the revenue can be relfably measured. The bank applies NFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers" in the accounting of revenue, unless otherwise stated. Revenue is not recognized

during the period in which its recoverability of income Is not probable. The bases of incomes recognition are
as below;

Interest income

i. Interest income are recognised under accrual basis (using the effective interest rate method) in the profit
or lass for all interest-bearing financial assets measured at amortized cost. Effective Interest Rate (EIR)
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash recelpts or cash payments through the expected
life of financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial assel. Effective Interest Rate method is
a method of calculating the amortized cos! of a financial asset and of allocating the Interest Income over
the relevant period.

il. The Bank has adopted the alternative treatment in calculation of EIR as provided by the Carve Outin NFRS
implementation. The Bank has excluded the full amount of upfront loan management fees or commission
received on loans and advances in the calculation of effective interest rate due to Impracticability.

iii. Nepal Rastra Bank has issued "Guideline on Recognition of Interest Income 2019" wide circular no.
Bai, Bi. Ni.Bi./Niti/Paripatra/KakhaGa/01/076/77. This doocument has provided guldance on application
of judgments In assessing the collectability of interest on loans and advances and delermining whether
there is a need o recognize interest suspense or lo cease interest accrual. The bank has implemented
this guiteline and recognized interest suspense and stopped interest accrual In qualifying accounts while
determining the interast income for the current reporting pariod.

Interest income presented in Statemant of Profit or Loss includes:

« Interest income on financial assels measured al amortized cos! calculated on an effective intereslt
rate method. These financial assets Include loans and advances including slaff loans, invastmant in
government securities, investment in corporate bonds, investment in NRB Bond and deposit instruments,
reverse repos, inter banking lending etc.

« Interest on Investment securities measured at amortized cost, calculated on effective interast rate.

« Income on discounted instruments like bills purchased, documents negotiation is recognized over the
period of discounting on accrual basis using effective interest rate.

Interest incoma on all trading assets are considered to be incidental to the Bank's trading operations and are

presented together with all other changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net trading income.

NFRS Requirement

NFRS requires interest Income to be recognised using the effective interest method, except for those
classified at fair value through profit or loss. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating the interest income over the expected life of the financial
instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments
or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount of the financial assel or financial liability. The effective interesl rate is calculated on
initial recognitlon of the financial assel or liability by estimating the futlure cash flows afier considering all
the contractual terms of the Instrument but not future credit losses. The calculation includes all amounts
expected to be paid or received by the Bank including expected early redemption fees and related penalties
and premiums and discounts that are an integral part of the overall return. Direct incremental transaction
costs related to the acquisition, issue or disposal of financial instruments is also taken into account in the
calculation, Once financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of
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an impairment loss, interest income Is recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Carve-out for Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The bank has availed the carye-out for interest income recognition by applying the rate implicit on individual
products. Considering the amount of renewal and initial service fees that the bank charges on the loans
and advances (which is in negligible figure), applying EIR method would not be practical and cost effective.
Hence, initial service fees and renewal charges have been recognised during the period when such income
accrue rather than being Included within the companent of interest income under EIR method.,

Fee and commission income

Fees and commission income that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset are included
in measurament of effective Inlerest rate. Other fees and commission Income including management fee,
service charges, syndication fee, forex transaction commussion, commission of issue of letter of credit and
guarantee are recognized as the related services are performed.

Dividend income

Dividend on investment in resident company is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.
Dividend income are presented in net trading income, nel income from other financial instruments al fair
value through profit or loss or other ravenue based on the underlying classification of the equity Instruments.

Net trading income

Resuits arising from trading activities include all gains and losses from changes in fair value and related
intarest income or expense and dividends for financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading. This
includes any ineffectiveness recordad in hedging transactions, Net trading income also includes gain on
foreign exchange transaction.

Net income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities classified in this category are those that have been designated by
management upon Initial recognition. Management may only designate an instrument at fair value through
profit or loss upon Initial recognition when the following criteria are met, and designation is determined on an
instrument-by-instrurnent basis:

« The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise
from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on them on a differant basis,

« The assels and liabllities are parl of a group of financial assets, financial llabilities or both, which are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy.

« The financial instrument contains one or more embedded derivatives, which significantly modify the cash
flows that would otherwise be reguired by the contract.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recorded in the statement of
financial position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in Net gain or loss on financial assets and
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in statement of Praofit or Loss. Interest
earned or Incurred is acerued in Interest Income or Interast expense, respectively, using the effective interast
rate (EIR), while dividend income is recorded in other operating income whan the right to the payment has
been established.

“aitas Tiaden 2008




fiare den MIAES

NMEP(IL BANK LIMITED

®)

3.14  interest axpense

Interest expanse on all financial liabilities including deposits are recognized in profit or loss using effective
intarest rate method. Interest expense on all trading liabilities are considered 1o be incidental to the Bank's
trading operations and are presented together with all other changes in fair value of trading assets and
liabilities in net trading income

3.15 Employees Benefits
a) Short Term Employee Benefits

Short term employae benefit abligations are measurad on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is also recogmzed for the amount expected ta be paid as bonus as
required by the prevailing Bonus Act. Obligations under short ferm employee benefits results based on past
sarvice provided by the amployee when the obligation can be estimated raliably,

Short-term employee bensfits include all the following items (if payable within 12 months aftar the end of the
reporting period):

« wages, salaries and social security contributions;
« paid annual leave and paid sick leave,;
« non-monetary benefits

b) Post-Employment Benefit Plan
Post-employment benefit plan includes followings:
i. Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is 3 post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays a fixed contribution
fo a separate entity and has no legal or constructive abligation to pay future amounts. Obligations for
contributions to defined conlribution plans are recognized as personnel expense in profit or loss in the
periods during which the related service are rendered by employees. Pre-paid conlnbutions are recognized
as an asset o the extent that cash refund or reduction in future payments is avallable. Contributions to
a defined contribution plan heing due for more than 12 months after the end of the penod in which the
employee render the service are discounied at their preseni value. The following are the defined contribution
plan provided by the Bank to Its employees:

a) Employees Provident Fund

In accordance with law, all employees of the Bank are enfitled to receive benefits under the provident fund,
a defined contribution plan in which bath the employee and the Bank cantribute monthly at a pre-determined
rate (currantly, 10% of the basic salary plus grades). Bank does not assume any future liability for providant
fund benefits other than its annual contribution.

b) Contributory Gratuity Plan

With effective from 01/04/2079, contributory gratuity plan has been introduced in the bank for the new
recruitments. As per the plan, both the employee and the bank contribute monthly at a pre-determined
rate (currently, 6 % of the basic salary plus grades for permanent emplayee and 8.33 % of the basic salary
for contract employee), Bank does not assume any future liabllity for such contributory plan other than its
annual contribution.

ii. Defined Benefit Plan

The Bank provides Pension & Gratuity Plan, Ratirement Plan and Leave Encashment Plan (in terms of
Annual Leave and Sick Leave) as defined benefils o its employses. These banefits are post-employment
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benefit plans and are paid based on length of service. These benefil plans are funded whereas the Bank
makes earmark investment of these funds. The gratuity plan provides for lump sum payments to vested
employees at retirement or upon death while in employment or on termination of employment for an amount
equivalent defined days’ eligible salary payable for each completed year of service.

The pension plan provides for lump sum payments to vested emplayees at ratirement or equated payment
till death of the employee (and half thereafter to the spouse of the employee). Further, employees of the
Bank are entitled to avail Annual Leave and Sick Leave. The employees can carry forward the un-availed
leave and are entitied to encash the cumulative leave at the time of the retirement. The obligation under
these plans are calculated by a qualified actuary every year using projected unit credit method.

The following are the defined benafit plans provided by the Bank to its employees:
a) Gratuity (Other than Contributory Gratuity)

Bank provides far gratuity on accrual basis cavering eligible employees in terms of Employee Service
Byelaws of the Bank. The plan provides for lump sum payments to vested amployees at retirement or upan
death while in amployment or an termination of emplayment for an amount equivalent defined days’ sligible
salary payable for each completed years of service. The Bank accounts for the liabllity for gratuity as per the
actuanal valuation,

iii. Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are recognized as expense when the Bank is demonstrably committad, without realistic
possibility of withdrawal, to a formal plan to provide termination benefils to employees as a resull of an offer
made lo encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits are recognized if the Banks made an offer
for voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted and the number of acceptances can
be measured reliably. If the benefits are payable In more than 12 months after the reporting date, lhey are
discounted 1o their present value.

iv. Other Long-Term Employee Benefits

Other employee benefits which are payable in more than 12 months after the reporting date which are
nat categorised under post-employment and termination benefits are categorized under Other Long-Term
Employee Benefits.

c) Leave Salary

The employees of the Bank are entilled to carry forward a part of their unavailed/unutilized leave subject
to a maximum limit. The employees can encash unavalled/unutilized leave partially In terms of Employee
Service Byeiaws of the Bank. The Bank accounts for the liability for accumulated leave as per the acluarial
valuation.

316 Leases
The Bank as a Lessee:

NFRS 16 is first time adoption in Nepalese BFls since 1st Shrawan 2078. Now, there is no longer distinction
between operating lease and finance |ease for lessee.

The leases are capltalised and presented on the statement of financial position as both assets, known as
right of use (ROU) asset, and lease liabllities and expenses of depreciation and interest expense on the
Statement of Prafit or Loss.

Under NFRS 16, a lease is defined as a conlract conveying an entity the right to ulllize a specific asset for a
period of time in-exchange for consideration where nght to substantially all economic benefits from the use
of identified asset is established except short term lease and low value assets,
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The right-of-use asset is subsaquently depreciatad using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the end of the lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid al the
commencement date, discounted using the implicit Interest rate { incremental borrowing rate i.e. market rate.

Bank Is presenting ROU under PPE, Lease liability under other liability, Depreciation of ROU under
Depreciation and amortization and interest expenses on lease liability under heading Interest expenses.

The Bank as a lessor

Leases in which the Bank does not transfer substantially all of the risks and benefits of ownership of the
asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognisad over the lease term on the same bases as
rental income. Contingant renis are recoanised as revanue In the period In which they are eamed,

3.17 Foreign Currency transiation

The items included in the financial statements of the entity are measured using the functional currency of
the Bank which Nepalese Rupees is using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates when the transactions
were affected.

Monetary assets and liabilities denorminated In foreign currencies aré translated into the functional currency
al the both buying and selling rate af exchange at the finanwal statement dale. Any resulting exchange
differences are Included in the "Other Operating Income" in statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
into the functional currency using the rate of exchange at the date of initial transaction, Non-monetary item
assels and liabilities measuraed at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency
using the rate of exchange at the date the fair value was determined.

Forgign exchange differences arising on settlement of monetary items Is included in "Net Trading Income”
in statement of profit or loss.

3.18 Financial guarantee and loan commitment

The Bank makes available to its customers guarantees that may require that the Bank makes payments
on their behalf and anters into commitments to extend credil lines (o secure their liquidity needs. Lellers of
credit and guarantees (including standby letters of credit) commit the Bank to make payments on behalf of
customers in the event of a specific act, ganerally related to the import or export of goods. Such commitments
expose the Bank to similar risks to loans and are mitigated by the same conlrol processes and policies.

3.19  Share capital and reserves

The Bank classifies the caplilal instruments as equity instruments or financal liabilities In accordance with
the substance with the contractual terms of the instruments. Equity is defined as residual Interest In total
assets of an entity after deducting all its liabilities. Common shares are classified as equity of the Bank and
distributions thereon are presented In statement of changes in equity.

The Bank is required to maintain the capital adequacy ratio imposed by the regulator. The ratio is fixed at
11% for current year and the Bank has maintained the ratio equal to 13.74%

Incremental costs directly attnbutable to issue of an equity instruments are deducted from the equity.

The reserves include retained earnings and other statutory reserves such as general reserve, exchange
equalization reserve, regulatory reserve, fair value reserve, revaluation reserve and other reserves.
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Regulalory reserve includes any amount derived as result of NFRS convargence with effact in retained
eaming computed as per NRB Directive No. 4.

Earnings per share Including diluted

Basic earnings per share |s computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the year by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year,

Diluted earnings per share Is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the year as adjusted for dividend,
interest and other charges to expense or income (netl of any attributable laxes) relating lo the dilutive
potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued
on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed o be dilulive
only If thelr conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary
operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period,
unless they have been issued al a laler date.

Thera have been no transactions involving ordinary sharas or polential ardinary shares between the reporting
date and the date of the completion of these financial statements which would require the restatement of
eamings per share.

Segment reporting

An operating seament is a component of the Bank that engages in business activities from which it may
aam revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relating to transactions with
any of the Bank's ather components, whose operating results are reviewad by the managemant 1o make
decision about resource allocation to each segment and assess its performance. The Bank has classified
four operating segmerits as Banking, Treasury, Remittance and Government Transaction.

Explanatory Notes

The explanatary notes and significant disclosure relating to the financial statements are as follows:
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the total amount of cash In hand, balances with other banks and
financial Institutions, money at call and short notice,

Cash in hand 5,296,792,475 5,803,631,301
Balance with B/Fls 759,710,508 587,970,352
Money at call and short notice 2,600,000,000 -
Other - -
Total 8,656,502,983 6,391,601,653

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Statutory balances held with Nepal Rastra Bank for compulsory cash reserve, securities purchased from
Nepal Rasira Bank under resale agreement, other deposits with and receivables from Nepal Rastra Bank
has been presented under this account hiead.

Statutory Balances with NRB 19,732,299,143 6,803,320,119
Securities Purchased under re-sale agreement - -
Other deposit and recelvable from NRB 16,573,119 37,933,171
Total 19,748,872,262 6,841,253,290
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4.6

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions

Placement with domestic as well as foreign bank and financial mstitutions are presented under this

account head

Particulars

Placements with domestic B/Fis
Placement with foreign B/Fls
Less: Allowances for Impairment
Total

Derivative Financial Instruments

Current Year

582,511,250

582,511,250

The denivative financial instrumenis held by the Bank during the year are as follows.

Particulars

Held for troding

Interest rate swap
Currency swap

Forward exchange contract
Others

Held for risk manogement
Interest rate swap
Currency swap

Forward exchange cantract
Others :

Total

Other Trading Assets

Particulars
Treasury Bills

Government Bonds

NRB Bonds

Domestic Corporate Bonds
Equities

Other

Total

Loan and Advances to Banks and Financial Institutions

Particulars

Loans to microfinance institutions
Other

Less: Allowances for Impairment
Total

115,040,866

115,040,866

Current Year
5,572,097,061
(72,437,262)
5,499,659,799

Previous Year

491,033,317

491,033,317

Previous Year

441,906,856

491,906,856

Previous Year

105,284 451

105.284.481

£.240,752,660)

(81,129,785)
6,159,622,876
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4.6.1 Impairment allowances for the loans and advances forwarded to BFls during the year are as follows:

Particulars

Balance at 1 Shrawan
Impalrment lass for the year:
Charge for the year
Recoveries/reversals
Amount written off

Balance at Ashad end

4.7 Loans and advances to customers

Current Year
‘81,129,785

(8,692,523)

72,437,262

Previous Year
86,121,278

(4,991,434)

81,129,785

Outstanding amount of all loans and advances extended to the customers other than BFIs as well as
Bills Purchased and discounted less the amount of impairment allowances has heen presented. Loan to
employaes provided according to employee bye-laws of lhe bank has also been prasented under lhis head.

Particulars

Loans and advances measured at amortized cost
Less: Impairment allowances

Collective Allowances

Individual Allowances

Net amount

Loans and advances measured at FVTPL

Total
471 Analysis of Loans and Advances- By Product

Particulars
Praduct

Long Term Loans

Personal

Business

Working Capital

Overdraft (Personal)

Cash Credit Loan

Trust receipt/Import loans
Short Term WC/Demand Loan
Personal residential loans
Real estate loans

Margin lending loans

Hire purchase loans
NDeprived sector loans
Bills purchased

Staff loans

Others

Interest recelvable

Grand Total

Current Year
184,771,695,542
{6,215,126,525)
{5,061,168,531)
(1,153,957,994)
178,556,569,017

178,556,569,017

Current Year

7,724,585,970
36,941,026,793
5,002,161,648
31,357,529,387
2,354,821,581
23,638,404,226
8,269,558,780
11,866,824,444
3,946,252,202
2,328,567,509
7,018,099,939
2,593,831
2,162,784,827
39,451,098,556
182,964,339,693
1,807,355,849
184,771,695,542

Previous Year
176,573,587,669
(5,093,085,803)
(4,080,621,195)
(1,012,464,607)
171,480,501,866

171,480,501,866

Previous Year

7.399,724,684
30,959,395,566
1,981,282,296
27,339,313,361
5,103,617,659
34,156,003,591
8,034,289,595
8,850,725,838
4.605,590,119
2,874.340,454
11,058,244,000
2,800,000
1,121,5496,344
32,281,460,362
175,768,383,870
805,203,799
176,573,587,669

% :‘I Fite® 7indsd 200% ©o




4.7.2 Analysis of Loans and advances- By Currency

Particulars
Nepalese rupee
Indian rupee
United State dollar
Great Britain pound
Euro

Japanese yen
Chinese yen

Gther

Total

4.7.3 Analysis of Loans and advances- By Collateral

Particulars

Secured

Maovable/immovatile assets

Gold and silver

Guarantee of domeastic B/Fls
Government Guarantee

Guarantee of International Rated bank
Collateral of export document
Collateral of fixed deposit reczipt
Collateral of Government securitias
Counter Guarantee

Personal Guarantee

Other callateral

Subtotal

Unsecured

Grand Total

4.7.4 Allowances for Impairment

Particulars

Specific allowance for impalrment

Balance at Shrawan 1

Impairment loss for the year

Charge for the year

Recoveries/reversal dunng the year
Write-offs

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency

Other Movement
‘Balance at Ashad end
Collective allowance for tmpairment

Current Year
184,771,695,542

184,771,695:542

Current Year

149,713,794,323
18,839,427,115
5,880,738,571
17,119,032

1,211,620,337
59,643,017

701,776,603
8,347,576,544
184,771,695,542

184,771,695,542

Current Year

1,012,464,607

141,493,386

1,153,957,994

@)
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Previous Year
175,592,852,555

980,735,115

176,573,587,669

Previous Year

148,312,856,532
16,704,548,085
4,536,572,786
31,961,901

996,401,875
900,000

307,742,955
5,682,603,535
176,573,587,669

176,573,587,669

1,077,020,754

(64,556,147
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Balance at Shrawan 17

Impairment loss for the year
Charge/(reversal) for the year

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency
Other movement

Balance at Ashad end

Total Allowance for impairment

Investment securities

Particulars

|Investment securities designated as at FVTPL
Investment securities measured at amortized cost
Investment Securities measured at FVTOCI

Total

Investment securities measured at amortized cost

Particulars

Debt securities
Government bonds
Government treasury bills
Nepal Rastra Bank bonds

Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments
Other

Less: specific allowances for impairment
Total

Investment in equity

Particulars

Equity instrument

Quoted eouity instrument
Ungquoted equity instrument
Total

Infarmation relating to investment In equities

4,080,621,195

979,801,155

5,061,168,531
6,215,126,525

Current Year

53,339,298,767
3,606,883,921
56,946,182,687

Current Year

25,730,100,000
27,609,198,767

53,339,298,767

Current Year

2,114,859,224
1,492,024,697
3,606,883,920

3,157,418,274

923,202,921

4,080,621,195
5,093,085,803

Previous Year

38,705,794,565
2,243,047 427
40,948,841,992

Previous Year

20,239,700,000
18,466,094, 565

38,705,794,565

Previous Year

1,566,039,362
707,008,065
2,273,047,427

Investment has been reclassified in line with NFRS, investments which have existence of significant influence
of bank has been classified as Invesiment in Associales. Previously all the investments were classified as
Investment in securities. lts Impactis also provided in previous year.

Investment in Quoted Equity

Current Year
Name Cost Fair Value
Grameen Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
91,433,402 382,138,764

677,551 Promoter Shares of NPR. 100 each fully
paid

51,433,402

Fair Value

382,138,764
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Deprosc Bikas Bank Ltd

1,437,889 Promoter Shares (Including 1,062,967
Bonus Shareas also) NPR, 100 each fully paid

Sanima Large Cap Fund {IPO)
1,000,000 Units of NPR. 10 fully paid
Kumarl Equity Fund

1,000,000 Units of NPR. 10 fully paid
Nepal Life Insurance Company

367 Ordinary Shares {Inciuding 367 Bonus
Shares also) of NPR. 100 fully paid

Deprosc Bikas Bank Ltd
1 Bonus Shares of NPR. 100 fully paid

Sana Kisan Bikas Bank Promaoter Share

239,124 Promoter Shares (Including 193,593
Bonus Shares aiso) NPR. 100 each fully paid

Sunrise BlueChin Fund

1,000,000 Units of NPR. 10 fully paid
NIBL Samriddhi Fund - |l

1,500,000 Units of NPR. 10 fully paid
Prabhu Select Fund

1,468,090 Units of NPR. 10 fully paid
Nabil Balanced Fund -3 (NBF3)
16,670 Units of NPR. 10 fully paid
Mega Mutual Fund -1 (MEGAMEF)
436,340 nits of NPR. 10 fully paid
Citizen Investment Trust promaoter Share

1,518,359 Promoter Shares {Including 962,847
Bonus Shares also) NPR, 100 2ach fully paid

RB8 mutual Fund 1
2,000,000 Units of NPR. 10 fully paid
Total

Investment in Unquoted Equity
Gorakhkali Rubber Udhyog Ltd
1,60,000 Ordinary Shares of NPR. 75 fully paid

Nepal Oll Corporation

84,646 Ordinary Shares (Including 83,146 Bonus
Shares also) of NPR. 100 each fully paid

Rastriya Utpadakatyo Tatha Arthik Bikash Kendra

5,000 Ordinary Shares of NPR. 100 each fully
paid

31,392,980

10,000,000

10,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

14,680,900

166,700

4,363,400

39,502,13%

20,000,000

246,539,520

632,671,028

8,920,000

10,170,000

267,176

B26

7,850,000

13,665,000

12,992,597

126,192

3,486,357

1,026,411,285

16,160,000

Current Year

Cost

12,000,000

150,000

500,000

Fair Value

500,000

31,392,980

10,000,000

10,000,000

3,824,284

10,000,000

15,000,000

14,680,200

166,700

4,363,400

39,502,133

20,000,000

250,363,804

712,407,977

9,320,000

10,070,000

274,148

170,802,900

8,740,000

13,005,000

14,108,345

157,198

3,486,357

222,588,672

18,540,000

- 1,566,039,362

Previous Year
Cost Fair Value

12,000,000

150,000

500,000

23,148,988

500,000
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Sajha Sewa Sahakari Santhan Limited

11 Ordinary Shares (Including 6 Bonus Share
also) of NPR. 100 each fully paid

Karja Suchana Kendra

57,893 Ordinary Shares {Including 54,369 Bonus
Shares also} NPR. 100 each fully paid

Nepal Clearing House

130,562 Ordinary Shares {Including 105,562
Banus Shares slso) NPR, 100 each fully paid

National Banking Training Centre

18,349 Ordinary Shares of NPR. 100 each fully
paid

ICRA Nepal Limited

27,360 Ordinary Shares (Including 19,760 Bonus
Shares also) NPR. 100 each fully paid

Himalayan Reinsurance Company

5,000,000 Ordinary Shares of NPR, 100 each
fully paid

NMB Urja Debeture 4% 2093/94

20,000 Units NPR. 1000 each fully paid
NIC Asia Flexi Cap Fund (NICAFCF)
3,500,000 Units of NPR. 10 each fully paid
Kumari Dhanbriddhi Yojana (KBDY)
2,500,000 Units NPR. 10 each fully paid

Avasar Equity Diversified fund 7,50,000 Ordinary
Shares of NPR. 100 each fully paid

Avasar Equity Limited

3,00,000 Ordinary Shares of NPR. 100 each fully paid

Current Tax Assets and Liabilities

Particulars

Current year income tax assets

Tax assets of prior periods

Total

Current tax Liabilities

Current year income tax liabilities
Tax Liabilities of prior periods

Total

Net Current tax assets / (Liabilities)

500

353,000

2,500,000

1,834,860

760,000

500,000,000

20,000,000
35,000,000
25,000,000

750,000,000

30,000,000

1,378,098,360

1,100

29,830,450

33,262,278

7,581,070

6,249,759

554,600,000

20,000,000
35,000,000

25,000,000
750,000,000

30,000,000

1,492,024,697

1,409,275,839
1,948,383,063
3,357,658,501

1,177,445,202
977,248,159
2,154,693,361

1,202,965,540

500,000,000

628,098,360

60,055
17,256,880
25,355,480

5,855,404
9,188,400

514,642,857

20,000,000
35,000,000

25,000,000

30,000,000

935,207,384

1,303,493,754
1,642,235,420
2,945,729174

995,339,886

995,339,886
1,950,389,288

Tax Liability for prior period includes amount of NPR 877,248,159 paid In respect lo bonus distributed from
Premium on Further Public Offering (FPO) envisioned under Section 56(3) of the Incaome Tax Act, 2058.
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Tax assets of prior periods is adjusted for final lax settlemant of FY 2074-75 amounting NPR. 2,006,225,06
as per tax assessment by Large tax payer office.

410  Investment in Subsidiaries
There was no Investment by Bank in Subsidiaries during the reported period
411  Investment in Associates
The bank has investment in both quoted and unquoted share of different associates.

Anassociate is an entity over which the investor has significant Influsnce. A significant influgnce is the power
to participate in the financial and operaling policy decisions of the investee withoul the power lo control or
jointly control those policies. If an entity holds, directly or indirectly, 20 per cent or more of the voting power
of the Investes, itis presumed that the entity has significant Influence, uniess it can be clearly demonstrated
that this is nat the case,

investments given below has been classified as investment in associate although holding in such entity are
iess than 20% because Bank has representative in the Board of Directors of the entity which is deemed
as having significant Influence. The bank has accountad investment In associates using Fair value Method
under the Nepal Accounting Standards — NAS 28 on “Investments in Associates and Joint venture™.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Investment in Quoted Associates 2,699,565,638 1,442,026,703
Investment in Unquoted Associates 37,383,707 366,037,525
Total investment

Less: Impairment allowances

Net carrying amount 2,736,953,345 1,808,064,228

Investment In Assoclates with valuation of NPR 1,808,064 228 was classified under Investment In Securities
in the previous year's financial statements. Such investments have been reclassed under the Investment
in Assaciates during current financial year. This rectassification has resulted in decrease in investment in
Securities in the previous year by NPR 1,808,064,228 and increase in Investment in Associated by that
amount.

4.11.1 Investment in Quoted Associates

Name Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Rastriya Beema Company Ltd
(292,288 Promoter Share (Including 155,878 375825  1,522,714,204 375,825 393,150,743

Bonus Shares also) of NPR, 100 each fully paid )
Rural Microfinance Development Centre (RMDC)

1,124,396 Promoter Shares (Including 610,156 68,985,047 291,807,606
Bonus Shares also) of NPR. 100 fully Paid)) '
(Merged With SKBBL, In FY 2079/80)

Sana Kisan Bikas Bank Promaoter Share

239,124 Promoter Shares (Including 193,593 73 g0g 331 354,146,649
Bonus Shares also) NPR. 100 each fully paid.
(Merge with RMDC])
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Nepal Insurance Company Limited Promoter
Share

2,247,838 Promoter Shares (Inciuding 868,187
Bonus Shares also) NPR, 100 each fully paid

Total 211,723,579 2,699,569,638 206,512,818 1,442,026,703
4.11.2 Investment in Unquoted Associates

138,538,423 822,708,785 137,151,946 757,068,353

Current Year Previous Year
Name Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Rastriya Beema Sansthan
301,700 Promoter Shares (Including 298,700 331,361 37,383,707 331361 366,037,525

Bonus Shares alse) NPR, 100 each fully paid
Total 331,361 37,383,707 331,361 366,037,525
4.11.3 Information relating to associates of the Bank

% of Ownership held by Bank
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Nepal Insurance Company Limited Promoter Share 15.04% 15.00%
Rastriya Beema Company Ltd(Promoter) 10.96% 10.96%
Rural Microfinance Development Centre{Promoter) - 7.19%
Sana Kisan Bikas Bank(Promoter | 3.65% -
Rastriva Beema Sansthan-Promotor 16.67% 16.67%

412 Investment Properties

Thisalsaincludes land, land and buiiding acquired as nen-banking assets by the Bank but not sold. Investment
properties are measured al cosl, howaver no depracalion has been charged as no such properties has baen
used by the Bank, The detail of Investment properties measured at cost is as follows:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Investment Properties measured at fair value

Balance as on Shrawan 1 - -
Addition/Disposal during the year

Net changes in fair value during the year

Adjustment/Transfer - -
Net Amount - -
Investment Properties measured at cost

Balance as on Shrawan 1 108,545,596 111,028,379
Addition/(Disposal) during the year 89,564,009 (2,482,783)
Adjustment/Transfer

Accumulated depreciation

Accumulated impalrment loss

Net Amount 198,108,605 108,545,596
Total 198,109,605 108,545,596
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414 Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill and intangible assets ike computer software both purchasad and intemally generated, trade mark
etc. has been presenled under this account head.

Softwars Total Tota} Total
Particulars Goodwill Oher  acat3ist Asat32nd  Asst3ist
Purchased Devaloped Ashad 2080 Ashad 2070 Ashad 2078
Caal
Balance 35 on 315t Asadh 2078 94,063,355 94,063,155
2078-79

Addition durng the Year

Acquisition 5,200,258 5.200.258
Capitahzation

Dispesal duing the yesr

AdusimentRevaluabon

Balance as on 32nd Asadh 2079 99,263,613 - - 99,263,613
207e-80

Addinon guning the Year

Acqulsition 11,645,549 11,645,538

Capiiaizatan

isposal duning the yaar

Adpustment/Revaluatian -

Balance as on 31st Asadh 2060 110,908,151 = - 110,908,151

Ammartization g Impaiment

Balance as on 315t Asadh 2078 48,226,821 48,226,821
2078-79

Impairmant thargs for the Yaar

Ammonitzation Tor the year 15,601,574 15601574
Dispusals

Adusiment

Balance as on 32nd Asadh 2079 63,828,395 63,828,395
207e-80

Impairmant charge for the Yaar

Ammanization far the year 785,296,471 15,230,471

Dispasals

Atpstrmett -

Balance as on 316t Asadh 2080 79.064,805 70,064,866

Capital Work in Progross

‘MM-V-Muoﬁﬂnmm 45,836,534 W'M
Nat Book Value 38 on 32nd Asach 2079 35435210 35435210

Net Book Value as on 31t Asadh 2080 31,844,285 31,844,265

0 v aifes 7iaded 2008
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415 Deferred Tax Assels / Liabilities
Currant Year 2079/80
s e
Liabilities
Deferred Tax on Temporary differences on following items
Loans and Advances to B/Fls - - -
Loans and Advances to customers - - E
Investment Properties - -
Investment Securities - 1,352,143,324 1,352,143,334
Investments (HFT) 6,700,530 {6.700,530)
Property and equipment 3,320,086,502 3,320,086,502
Debt securities Issued 1,694,518 1,694,518
Employees’ defined benefit plan 569,219,859 (569,219,859)
Lease liabiliies/ROU Assets 252,595,992 226,345,866 (26,246,126)
Lease Receivable - 1,660,057 1,660,057
Provisions = -
Other temporary differences 9,167,036 9,167,035
Deferred Tax on Temporary differences 828,516,381  4,911,101,312  4,082,584,932
Deferred Tax on carry forward of unused tax losses - - -
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate . - -
Net Defered tax (asset)/liabilities as on year end of 2079/80 4,082,584,932.
Deferred tax(asset)/liabilities as on shrawan, 2079 4,269,152,641
Origination/(Reversal) during the year (186,567,709)
Deferred tax expense/(Income) recognlsed in profit or loss (203,418,327)
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in other
comprehensive income 16,850,617
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised directly in equity E
Pravious Year 2078/79
Particulars Deferred Defefred_ Tax  Net Befemdm
TaxAssets  Liabilities  (Assets) / Liabilities
Deferred Tax on Temporary differences on following items
Loans and Advances to B/Fis
Loans and Advances to customers = S S
investment Properties
Investment Securities - 898,741,593 898,741,593
Property and equipment - 3,318,765,657 3,318,765,657
Employees' defined benefit plan 48,420,130 48,420,130
Lease liabilities/ROU Assets 240,405,396 226,579,930 (13,825,466)
Lease Receivable 5,455,870 5,455,870

Provisions
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Other temporary differences

Deferred Tax on Temporary differences

Deferred Tax on carry forward of unused tax losses

Deferred tax due to changes In tax rate

Net Defered tax (asset)/liabilities as on year end of 2078/79
Defarred tax(asset)/liabilities as on shrawan, 2078
Origination/(Reversal) during the year
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in profit or loss

Dderred tax expense/(income) recognised in other
comprehensive income

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised directly in equity

416 Other assets

Particulars
Assets held for sale
Other Non-Banking Assets
Bills Recelvable
Accounts recelvable
Accrued income
Prepayments and deposits
Income tax deposit
Deferred Employee Expenditure
Other
Inter Branch Account
Stationery Stock
Gold Bullion in Vault
Government Transaction Receivable
DD Pald without Schedule
Credit Card Receivable
Other
Total
417  Due to Bank and financial institution

Particulars

Money market deposits
Interbank borrowing

Other deposits from BFis
Settlement and clearing accounts
Other deposits from BFls

11,594,757
240,405,396 4,509,214,622

Current Year

691,286,708
1,022,508,024
7,986,775
380,276,977
2,975,888,543

1,096,748,316
65,068,530
957,105,039
130,172,684
1,761,127,568
9,088,169,165

Current Year

1,275,441,704

11,594,757
4,269,152,641

4,269,152,641
4,435,213,928
{166,404,703)

(50,136,823)
(125,809,710)

402,046,415
554,897,651
4,354,671
380,276,977
2,249,708,274

1,467,885,526
52,709,191
311,010,898
1,725,905,928
129,971,129
2,712,068
2,710,761,310
9,992,240,038

Previous Year

1,090,678,643

Total 1,275,441,704 1,090,678,643

5 ‘_"' Fife® 7iadsd 200% ©o




4.18

419

4.20

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Particulars
Refinance from NRB
Standing liquidity facility

lLender of last report facility from NR8
Securities sold under repurchase agreement

Other payable to NRB
Total

Derivative financial instruments

Current Year
70,000,000

70,000,000

o)

Financial liability arising from derivative financial instrument has been shown bealow:

Particulars

Held for troding

Interest rate swap
Currency swap

Forward exchange contract
Others

Meld for risk manogement
Interest rate swap
Currency swap

Forward exchange contract
Others

Total

Deposits from Customers

Particulars

Institutions Customers:
Term deposits

Call Deposits

Current Deposits
Other

Sub total:

Individual Customers:

Term deposits
Saving Deposits
Current Depasits
Other

Sub total:

Total

Current Year

8,541,000

8,541,000

13,443,922,959
9,231,979,861
9,831,008,402
1,337,305,680
33,844,216,902

106,036,352,912
76,671,915,299
24,222,266,388
3,739,248,201
210,669,782,801
244,513,999,703

dure den IAES
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Previous Year
5,888,868,046

5,888,868,046
Previous Year

508,072,543

508,072,543

Previous Year

§,834,277,094
55,320,073
22,145,974,344
1,218,225,467
33,253,796,977

59,271,884,633
71,552,532,713
17,324,601,205
14,673,333,755
162,822,352,306
196,076,149,283




4.20.1 Currancy wise analysis of deposits from customers

421

4.22
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Particulars
Nepalese rupee
Indian rupee
United states doltar
Great Britain pound
Euro
Japanese yen
Chinese yuan
Other
Total

Borrowing
Particulars
Domestic Borrowing:
Nepal Government
Other institution
Other
Sub total
Foreign Borrowing:
Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions
Multiiateral Development Bank
Other institutions
Sub total
Total

Provisions

Particulars

Pravisions for redundancy

Pravision for restructuring

Pending legal issues and tax litigation
Onerous contract

Other*

Total

Current Year
244,062,482,374
84,940,491
333,313,402
291,058
30,357,052
2,615,325

244,513,999,703

Current Year

262,300,000

262,300,000

Current Year

247,896,915
247,896,915

Previous Year
195,752,239,660
102,836,653
218,594,802
254,839
2,221,394

1,941

196,076,149,283

Previous Year

7,304,175,000

7,304,175,000

7,304,175,000

Previous Year

-

65,966,539
65,966,539

* Other provision includes liability of NPR. 108,935,032 that occurred as per the decision given by Honourable
Supreme Court against the bank in case of 272 retire staff for Incremental pension of 7 years’ scheme.

% -_". Fite® 7indsd 200% ©o
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4.22.1 Movement in Provision

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Balance at Shrawan 1st 65,966,539 80,221,924
Provisions made during the year

Provisions used during the year - -
Provisions reversed during the year 181,930,377 (14,255,385}
Unwind of discount - b4
Balance at Ashad End 247,896,915 65,966,539
Other liabilities

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Liahility for employees defined benefit obligations 1,546,722,829 (403,917,780)
Liability for long-service leave 349,993,702 242,014,347
Short-term employee benefits - 179,911,118
Bills payahle 16,468,590 19,596,587
Creditors and Accruals 968,741,625 1,124,941,666
Interest payahle on deposit 7,140,849 5,477,563
Interest payable on borrowing 142,655,715 141,375,830
Liabilities on deferred grant income - -
Unpald Dividend 2,000,831 2,000,831
Liabilittes under finance lease -
Employee bonus payable 265,108,148 235,955,528
lL.ease Liability 841,986,640 801,351,321
Gther 2,116,991,238 3,568,683,283
Total 6,257,810,167 5,917,390,293
4.23.1 Defined benefit obligation

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Prasent vatue of unfunded obligations - -

Present value of funded obligations 13,532,069,857 11,413,148,293
Total present value of obligations 13,532,069,857 11,413,148,293
Fair value of plan assets 11,985,347,026 11,817,066,071
Present value of net obligations 1,546,722,831 {403,917,778)
Recognised liability for defined benefit obligation 1,546,722,831 (403,917,778)

4.23.2 Plan Assets

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Equity securities - -
Government bonds - -

Bank deposits 9,409,780,626 9,546,303,027
Other 2,575,566,400 2.270,763,044
Total 11,985,347,026 11,817,066,071
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4.23.3 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations

Particulars

Defined benefit obligation at Shrawan 1
Actuarial losses/{gain)

Benefit paid by the plan

Past Service Cost

Current service cost and interest
Defined benefit obligation at Ashad end

4.23.4 Movement in the fair value of plan assets

Particulars
Fair value of nlan assets at Shrawan 1st
Contributions paid into the plan

Current Year
11,413,148,292
1,513,238,608
(966,499,781)
321,132,673
1,251,050,064
13,532,069,856

Current Year
11,817,066,071

Benefit pald during the year
Actuarial (losses) gains

Expected return on plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at Ashad end
4.23.5 Amount recognised in profit or loss

Particulars

Current service cost
Past Service Cost
Interest on obligation

Expected return on plan assets

Net Expenses

4.23.6 Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

Particulars
Actuarial (gains) / losses
Total

4.23.7 Actuarial assumptions

Pirﬁculats

Discount Rate
Expected Return on Plan Asset
Future Salary Increase

Expected Average remaining
working lives (years)

Withdrawal rate

Current Year
Pension and Gratuity
9.50%
9.50%
5.00%

20.51
5.00%

Previous Year
10,589,095,616
339,196,513
(673,444,502)

1,158,300,665
11,413,148,292

Previous Year
11,448,239,041

(966,499,781) (673,444,502)
59,504,832 (14,256,251)
1,074 875,804 1,056,567,783
11,985,347,026 11,817,066,071
Current Year Previous Year
219,217,359 184,325,195
321,132,673
{40,329,330) 973,975,470
108,741,320 (1,077,066,488)
608,762,622 81,234,177
Current Year Previous Year
1,455,170,409 373,991,469
1,455,170,409 373,991,469
Pravious Year
Retirement  Pension and Gratuity Retirement
9.50% 9.50% 9.50%
9.50% 9.50% 9.50%
5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
13.38 21.50 13.36
5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

s aife® iaast 200% Go
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4.24 Debt securities issued
Particulars ‘Current Year Previous Year
Debt securities issued designated at fair value through profit or - -
loss
Debt securities issued at amortised cost 3,494,351,608 3,493,811,042
Total 3,494,351,608 3,493,811,042
425 Subordinated Liabilities
No Subordinated Liabilities has been Issued by the Bank.
4.26  Share Capital
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Ordinary shares 14,694,022,928 14,405,904,831
Convertible preference shares (Equity component) - -
Irredeemable preference shares (Equity component) - -
Perpetual debt {Equity component only) - -
Total 14,694,022,928 14,405,904,831
4.26.1 Ordinary Shares
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Authorized capital:
150,000,000 ordinary shares of NPR.100 each 15,000,000,000 15,000,000,000
|ssued capital:
146,940,229.28 ordinary shares of NPR,100 each 14,694,022,928 14,405,904,831
Subscribed and pald of capital
146,940,223 28 ordinary shares of NPR.100 each 14,694,022,528 14,405,904,831
Total 14,694,022,928 14,405,904,831
4.26.2 Ordinary share ownarship
Current Year Pravious Year
Particulars '
Percent Amount Percent Amount
Domestic ownership: 100.00% 14,694,022,928  100.00% 14,405,904,831
Nepal Government 51.00% 7,493,951,700 51.00% 7,347,011,400
"A" class licensed institution 0.00% 0.00% -
Other licensed institutions 0.00% - 0.00% -
Other institutions 9.41% 1,382,402,200 9.87% 1,422,435,000
Public 39.55% 5,817,669,028 39.13% 5,636,458,431
Other 0.00% - 0.00% -
Foreign ownership 0.00% - 0.00% -
Total 100.00% 14,694,022,928  100.00% 14,405,904,831
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4.26.3 Details of Shareholders holding 0.5% or more shares

Name of Shareholder Number of Share Holding % Amount
Nepal Govarnment 74,939,517 51.00% 7,493,951,700
Employees Provident Fund 5,348,237 3.64% 534,823,700
Prabhu Life Insurance 1,415,036 0.96% 141,503,600

Total ‘81,702,790 55.60% 8,170,279,000

4.26.4 Proposed Distributions (Dividend and Bonus Share)

The Board has nol recommended any bonus share and cash dividend for the reported Fiscal Year 2079/80.

4.27 Reserves
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Statutory General Reserve 7,952,622,266 6,067,232,483
Exchange equalisation reserve 87,340,885 #6,786,914
Corporate social responsibility reserve 65,227,007 37,266,384
Capital redemption reserve = -
Regulatory reserve 5,696,430,660 3,881,974,064
Investment adjustment reserve 1,741,861 1,741,861
Capital reserve 259,735,644 259,735,644
Assets revaluation reserve 7,743,591,321 7,743,591,321
Fair value reserve 3,155,001,112 2,097,063,718
Dividend equalisation reserve 7,485,526 7,485,526
Actuarial reserve (4,451,089,432) {3,432,470,146)
Special reserve
Other reserve
Capital Adjustment Fund 380,382,600 380,382,600
Contingent Reserve 2,763,349 2,763,349
Corporate development fund 3,300,000 3,200,000
Employee training fund 111,512,455 109,769,752
Debenture Redemption Reserve 777,771,778 388,888,889
Employees Welfare Fund 34,375,790 -
Total 21,828,258,921 17,635,512,359
4271 General Reserve

General Reserve is created as per Section 44 of the Banks and Financial Institutions Act 2073 equivalent to
20% of the net profit earned during the year untll the reserve is twice the patd-up share capital of the Bank
after which 10% of the net profit earned during the year shall be set aside as General Reserve.

Such reserve could not be expensed or transferred to other heads without prior approval of Nepal Rastra
Bank.

t Jifes wiads 2008 co
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4.27.2 Exchange Fluctuation Reserve Fund

Exchange Fluctuation Reserve is the reserve created as per Section 45 of the Banks and Financial Institutions
Act 2073 equivalent to 25% of the foreign exchange gain realized on the translation of foreign curréncy to
the reporting currency during the year other than Indian Rupees,

Such reserve could not be expensed or transferred to other heads without prior approval of Nepal Rastra
Bank other than to set off revaluation loss incurred, if any during the year.

4.27.3 Fair Value Reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative nel change in the fair value of financial assets thal are
measured at fair value and the changes In fair value s recognized in other comprehensive income, until the
assets are derecognized. The cumulative amount of changes in fair value of those financial assets has been
presented under this account head.

4,27.4 Assels Revaluation Reserve

Any reserve created from revaluation of assets (such as Property & Equipment, Intangible Assets, and
Investment Property) has been presented under this heading. Revaluation reserves often serve as a
cushion against unexpectad losses but may not be fully available to absorb unexpected losses due to the
subsequent delerioration in markel values and tax consequences of revaluation.

4.27.5 Regulatory Reserve

The amount that is aliocated from profit or retained eamings of the Bank to this reserve as per the Direclive of
NRB for the purpose of implemantation of NFRSs and which has not been regarded as free for distribution of
dividend (cash as well as bonus shares) has been presented under his account head, The amount allocated
{o this reserve includes interest income racognized but not received in cash, difference of loan loss provision
as per NRB directive and impairment on loan and advance as per NFRSs (in case lower Impairment is
recognized under NFRSs), amount equals to deferred tax asseis, ameunt of goodwlll recognized under
NFRSs etc.

Detail of Regulatory Reserve

cu AT Share ; Gaivion Fait Vishuw

T e o Geoobe voven (TG I eeme S e O

2074/1% 238595124 81,007,182 L213,818.67) 2,589,021,281
Z075/76 (37,000,246} 25,295,432 11,284, 840,051) {1,295,349.865)
207677 (56,351,413) {44,568,380) 78,323,330 589,403,017
J0THTH (52245303 5,096,638 LAS1ATII61 7,470,328 1,381,594,535
mm 64, 492 435 11,651,061) 261,794,028  |7.470,338) 517,105,074
078/80 695,774 195 59,560,004 58,7767 1.Q18,619,286 1,828.730814
Tomt  LOSKARLO7I - - 1BLNLNET  SATTI 6T - - apsi0e9 A - < SS90

4.27.6 Corporate Social Responsibility Fund

The fund created for the purpose of corparate social responsibility by allocating profit of 1% has been
presented under this account head.
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4.27.7 Other Reserva Fund

4.28

Any reserve created with specific or non-specific purpose (except stated in above) has been presented
under this by disclosing accounling heads.

Capital Reserve: The capital reserve reprasents the amount of those reserves which are in nature of capital
and which shall not be avallable for distribution of cash dividend. Amount under this heading includes
reimbursement (NPR.259.735.644.00) received from Ministry of Finance, Nepal Government in relation
to walver of loan repayments of Small Framers and Cottage Entrepreneurs NPR. Such amount has been
transferred based on directions recelved form such ministry during FY 2065/66.

Dividend Equalization Reserve: Dividend Equalization Reserve is maintained for the purpose of maintaining
uniformity in dividend payment. Dividend may be distributed by debiting this account with the approval of the
Board of Directors and endorsed by the General meeting.

Actuarial Reserve: Actuarial gain or loss that represents chanage in actuarial assumptions which is used to
value employee obligations |s presented under this heading.

Capital Adjustment Fund: Capital Adjustment Fund has been created In respect of increasing the capltal
base of the bank.

Contingent Reserve: Contingent Reserve has been eslablished to address unexpected risks and
contingencies that may adversely affect the bank’s financial position.

Corporate Development Fund: The fund has been established to support various sirateglc initiatives of the
bank aligned with the bank’s growth objectives.

Employee Training Fund: The Fund has been created based on NRB directives and shall be utilized for the
training and development of Bank's employaes. NRB Directives require Banks and Financial Institutions to
incur minimum three percentage of its total employee’s salary and allowance expenses of previous year on
training and development of their employees.

Debenture Redemption Reserve: NBL has issued debentures as an Instrument to raise capital. As per
NRB directive no. 16, Financial Institutions which have issued the debentures shall compulsorily create the
debenture redemplion reserve proportionately for the maturity term. Nepal Rastra Bank has exempted from
creating the debenture redemption reserve on the year of issue and redemption of debenture. Based on
such directives, debenture redemption reserve has been created and maintained.

Employee Welfare Fund: Employee welfare fund is established as per HR Byelaw of Bank to promole the
welfare of employees. Each year one percent of Net profit is transferred into this fund.

Contingent Liabilities and Commitment

Confingent Liabilitdes 28,624,501,685 30,492,484,841
Undrawn and undishursed facilities 55,814,391,081 44,848,461,711
Capital commitment

Lease commitment 1,120,316,269 1,067,213,933
Litigation

Total 85,559,209,036 76,408,160,485

“aitas Tiaden 2008




4.28.1 Contingent Liabilities

Particulars

Acceptance and Documentary credit
Bills for collection

Forward exchange contracts
Guarantees

Underwriting commitments

Other commitments®
Total

Current Year
8,805,824,895
564,499,143

17,082,360,438

2,171,817,209

28,624,501,685

fiare den IAES
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Previous Year
12,836,404,651
142,582,976

15,527,550,512

1,985,946,702
30,492,484,841

*Other commitments include NPR. 247,106,303, the liability that may occur due ta application af 517 retire
staff for incremental pension of 7 years' scheme howaver board has denied for providing such benefits
On the similar instance of 272 retired staffs, Honourable Supreme Court has given unfavourable decision

against the bank

4.28.2 Undrawn and Undisbursed Facilities

Particulars

Undisbursed amount of loans
Undrawn limits of overdraft
Undrawn limits of cradit cards
Undrawn limits of letter of credit
Undrawn limits of guarantee
Total

4.28.3 Capital Commitments

Particulars

Capital commitments in relation to Property and
Equipment

Approved and contracted for
Approved but not contracted for
Sub Total

Undrawn limits of guarantee

Capltal commitments In relation to Intangible assets
Approved and contracted for

Appraved but not contracted for
Sub Total
Total

13,282,207,735

147,347,459
27,784,535,758
14,600,300,130

55,814,391,081

Current Year

Previous Year
20,154,556,470
82,018,841
11,633,304,475
12,978,581,926
44,848,461,711

Previous Year
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4,284 Lease Commitments

4.29

4.30

Particulars

Operating lease commitments

Future minimum lease payment under non-cancellable operating fease, where the bank is lessee

Not |ater than 1 year

Later than 1 year but not later than S years

l.ater than 5 years
Sub Total

Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payment under non-cancellable operating lease, where the hank is lessee

Not |ater than 1 year

Later than 1 year but not fater than 5 years

Later than 5 years
Sub Total
Grand Total

Interest Income

Particulars

Cash and cash eguivalents
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Placement with Banks and Financial Institutions
Loans and Advances to Bank and Financial Institutions

Loans and advances to customars
Investment securities

Leans and advances to staff
Other

Total interest income

Interest Expenses

Particulars

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposits from customers

Barrowing

Debt securities issued

Subordinated liabilities

Interest Expenses-Lease

Other

Total interest expense

Current Year

178,982,624
641,883,037
299,450,609
1,120,316,269
1,120,316,269

Current Year

33,588,277
216,754,291
21,633,575,775
3,186,845,800
87,352,765

25,158,116,908

Current Year

17,923,960
168,545,171
15,079,153,3%0
112,673,024
298,040,566

74,828,152

15,751,164,273

Previous Year

162,647,420
592,967,516
311,598,997
1,067,213,933
1,067,213,933

Previous Year

33,608,749
32,104,810
14,772,975,636
1,532,603,123
68,657,110

16,439,950,427

Previous Year

39,021,853
107,738,599
9,050,700,234
162,827,278
258,208,098

66,867,392

9,725,363,453

s aife® iaast 200% Go
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4.31 Fees and Commission Income

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Loan Administration fees 106,692,210 99,439,828
Service feas 218,863,102 293,267,898
Consortium fees - -
Commitment fees 1,255,875 1,424138
DD/TT/Swift fees 34,090,301 28,916,694
Credit card/ATM issuance and renewal fees 2,822,049 855,785
Prepayment and swap fees - -
Investment banking fees - .
Assets management fees 9,152,311 10,309,995
Brokerage fees = -
Remittance fees 15,727,023 15,501,477
Cammission on letter of credit 64,499,230 57,178,883
Commussion on Guarantee Contracts issued 184,164,697 148,331,432
Commission on share underwriting/issued - -
Locker rental 35,180,958 25,373,153
Other Fees and Commission income 346,920,058 284,156,352
Total Fees and Commission Income 1,019,377,814 968,755,635
432 Fees and Commission Expense

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

ATM management fees - -

VISA/Master card fees - -

Guarantee commission 41,550,228 34,242,387

Brokerage 6,693,940 4,277,323

DD/TT/Swift feas 5,623,724 5,932,858

Remittance fees and commission - -

Other Fees and Commission Expense 134,443,167 37,359,941

Total Fees and Commission Expense 188,311,060 81,812,510

4,33  Net trading income

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Changes in fair value of trading assets 9,756,385 (43,325,075)
Gain/lass on disposal of trading assets - -
Interest income on trading assets - -
Dividend income on trading assets -

Gain/Loss Foreign Exchange Transaction 58,492,501 225,696,710
Other 10,393,123 15,770,128
Total Net trading income 78,642,010 198,141,763
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4.34 Other operating income
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Foreign Exchange Revaluation Gain 2,215,886 (39,110,617)
Gain/loss on sale of investment Securities - (728,402)
Fair value gain/loss on investment property - -
Dividend on equity instruments 15,074,014 13,768,570
Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment (502,210) 3,640,108
Gain/loss on sale of Investmeant property 3,355,281 18,624,495
Opemting lease income 28,626,048 24489993
Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver 5,295,980 11,050,878
Other 255,166,094 238,450,965
Total other operating income 309,231,092 270,185,989

4.35 Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Impalrment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/Fls {8,692,523) (4,991,494)
Impairment charge/{reversal) on loan and advances to
customer” 1,122,040,723 858,650,290
Impalrment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment - -
Impairment charge/{reversal) on placement with bank and
financial institutions - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment - -
Impairment charge/{reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment property - -
Total impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses 1,113,348,200 853,658,796

436 Personnel Expense
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Salary 1,300,133,714 1,050,159,667
Allowances 700,423,977 327,657,937
Gratuity expenses * - -
Provident fund 256,381,860 203,989,539
Uniform 33,351,000 22,180,000
Training & Development Expense 40,222,726 22,670,977
Leave encashment 143,557,667 63,816,267
Medical 170,791,263 100,405,655
Insurance 4,071,412 2,918,526
Employees Incentive 317,539,799 312,768,380
Cash-settled share-based payments - -
Pension Expense * 608,762,622 81,414,177
Finance expenses under NFRS 67,232,567 50,083,542
Other Expenses Related to Staff 10,905,731 10,847,625
Sub-Total 3,653,374,339 2,248,912,290

% -_". Fite® 7indsd 200% ©o




dure den MIAES
MEPHL BANK LIMITED

p——

Employees Bonus 232,141,629 202,589,009
Total personnel expenses 3,885,515,968 2,451,901,299
*Includes both pension and graluily expenses
4.37 Other operating expense
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Directors' fee 1,370,200 1,789,000
Directors' expense 2,048,794 2,013,156
Auditors' remuneration 2,563,688 2,330,625
Other audit related expense 16,387,394 7,375,122
Professional and legal expense 6,469,212 5,361,681
Office administration expense 697,080,430 585,663,607
Ooperating lease expense - -
Operating expense of investment properties - -
Corporate Social Responsibility Expense 6,415,167 -
Onerous lease provision - -
Other 184,431,986 183,200,873
Total ather operating expense 916,767,870 787,734,063
4.37.1 Office Administration Expense
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Water and electricity 58,487,351 54,277,408
Repalr and maintenance - -
(a)Building 1,090,504 1,196,746
(b) Vehicle 8,575,196 7,870,925
(c) Computer and accessories 7,123,150 6,625,383
(d) Office equipment and furniture 4,919,354 3,865,848
(e) Other 22,323,148 17,222,994
(f) Software 10,736,373 9,537,272
|nsurance 39,144,936 35,657,787
Postage, telex, telephone, fax 54,032,502 54,620,748
Printing and Stationery 59,620,808 38,976,686
Newspaper, books and journals 4,156,087 5,005,511
Advertisement 41,500,134 35,633,153
Danation - .
Security Expense 875,885 495,708
Deposit and loan guarantee premlum - 64,318,768
Travel allowance and expense 53,107,714 36,203,009
Entertainment 17,980,372 17,164,025
Annual/Special general meeting expense 1,097,983 855,625
Othar 309,544,370 186,136,010
Total office administration expense 694,315,916 585,663,607
Depreciation & Amortisation
Particulars ' Current Year Previous Year
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Depraciation on Property and Equipment
Depreciation on investment property
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation Expenses-ROU

Total depreciation and amortization
Non-operating income

Particulars
Recavery of loan written off

Other income

Total non-operating income
Non-Operating Expenses

Particulars

l.oan Written Off
Redundancy provision
Expenses of restructuring
Other expense

Total non-operating Expenses

income tax Expense

Particulars

Current tax expense

Current year

Adjustment for prior years

Deferred tax expense

Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Changes in tax rate

Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses

Total income tax expenses

4.41.1 Reconclliation of tax expense and accounting profit

Particulars
Profit before tax
Tax amount at tax rate of 30%

Add: Tax effect of expanses that are not deductible for tax purpose

Less: Tax effect on exempt Income
Add/less: Tax effect on other items

Total income tax expense
Effective tax rate

221,286,014

15,236,471
139,393,504

375,915,989

Current Year
76,265,222
996,184

77,261,406

Current Year

Current Year

1,170,945,202

{203,418,327)

Current Year
4,411,605,870
1,323,481,761

304,537,157

{4,522,204)
(452,551,511)
1,170,945,202
26.65%

120,655,665

15,601,574
132,842,580

339,099,823

Previous Year
219,321,656
5,643

219,327,299

Previous Year

983,650,423

(50,136,823)

933,513,600

Previous Year
3,856,791,169
1,157,037,351
175,035,726
(4,130,571)
{344,292,083)
983,650,423

25.50%

5 ‘_"' Fife® 7iadsd 200% ©o




Statement of Distributable profit or loss

For the year ended 31st Ashad 2080

As per NRB Regulation
Particulars
Net Profit/(loss) as per Statement of Profit or Loss
Appropriation

a. General Reserve

b, Foreign Exchange Fluctuation fund

¢ Capital redemption resarve

d. Corporate social responsibility fund

e. Employees training fund

f. Other

-Debenture Redemption Reserve

-Employess Welfare Fund

Profit/(loss) before regulatory adjustment

Regulatory Adjustments:

a. Interest Receivable (-)/previous accrued Interest received|+)
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts{-)/reversal{+)

¢ Short provision for possible losses on investment(-)/reversal(+)

d. Short provisian for possible Insses on Non-Banking Assets (-)/rever-
sal{+)

z. Deferred Tax Assets recognized(-)/reversal{+)

f. Goodwill racognized (-})/Impalrment of Goodwill{+)
g. Bargain purchase gain recognized (-)/reversal(+)
h. Actuarial Loss recognized (-)/reversal(+)

i. Other (+/-)

-Fair Value of Investment Secunities

Net Profit/(loss) for the year end Ashad 2080 available for distribution

Opening Retain Earning as on Shrawan 1 2079
Adjustment(+/-)

Tax on Issue of bonus shares from Share premium as per section 56(3)
of Income tax act 2058.

Trasfer to General Reserve as per NRB letter No. BSD/offsite/
AGM/148/2079-80 dated on 2079/09/06

Othars
rib s

Bonus shares issued

Cash Dividend paid
Total Distributable profit or (loss) as on Ashad end 2080
Annualised Distributable Profit/Loss per share

3,437,578,995

(687,515,799)
(553,971)
(27,960,623
(1,742,702)

(388,888,889)
(34,375,790)

(681,555,976)

(59,560,066)
(54,777,267)

(1,018,619,286)

3,422,196,158

{977,248,159)

{1,197,874,084)

(288,118,097)
(1,440,590,483)

389,959

0.00%
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2,923,277,569

(584,884 458)

{29,232,776)
(21,987,586)

(388,888,889)
1,898,283,860

(264,432,435)

1,651,051

(261,794,028)

8,615,058
1,382,323,506
3,732,371,500

23,866,879

(1,337,262,969)
(379,102,758)

3!‘2211961158 2
23.76%
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5 Disclosures & Additional Information
51 Risk Assessment and Management
Credit Risk

A credil risk is the risk of defaull on a debl thal may arise from a borrowar failing o make required payments.
In the first resort, the risk is that of the lender and Includes lost principal and interest, disruption to cash flows,
and increased collection costs. Factors for the credit risk include Counterparty Risk. Concentration Risk and
Securitization Risk.

The Bank has applied following mitigates for management of Credil Risk factors:

* Indepandent and ongoing credit quality review

* Limiting credit exposures

* Problem credit management system

« Divarsification of nsk assat portfolic among several sectors and sub sectors of the aconomy over a large
number of customers

« Deposit of borrower in bank, cash margin and additional collateral at individual level

« Proper valuation, storage, maintenance and insurance of collaterals.

Such mitigates are monitored by Board of Directors, Risk Management Committee which is Board Level
Committee, Credit Risk Management Department, NRB Inspection team and Intarnal Audit Department of
the Bank

Market Risk

Market risk is the possibility of a customer experiencing losses due to factars that affect the overall
performance of the Banking which the customer is involved. Market risk is systematic nsk of the financial
markel.

Factors of Market Risk include Interest Rate Risk, Equity Risk in Banking Book.
The Bank has applied following mitigates for management of the Market Risk factors:

+ Stress testing/simulation of market conditions

« Gap Analysis

« Limiting trading activity of instruments in the different markels
* Regular review of risk management processes

* Regular review of Risk Tolerance and appetite limit,

*  Measurement of Equity price shocks.

+ Measurement of Interest Rate Shocks

+ Interast rate related Risk Monitoring,

Such mitigates are monitored by Board of Directors, Risk Management Committee, Intarnal Audit Department
Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank may be unable to meet short term financial demands. This usually
occurs due to the inabllity to convert a security or hard asset to cash without a loss of capital and/or income
in the process.

Factors of Liguidity Risk includes Deterioration in guality of credit portfolio Concentrations in either assets
or liabilities, Rapid asset growth funded by highly volatile farge deposits, A large size of off-balance sheet
axposure.

“aitas Tiaden 2008
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The Bank has appliad following mitigates for the management of Liguidity Risk:

* Appropnate composition of assets and llabilities
+ Diversified and stable sources of funds

* Access to inter-bank market

* Contingency funding plan for crisis situations

+ Regular stress testing

« Cushion of liquid assets held

» Consistent analysis using liquidity ratios

+  Raview of Deposit Mix Concentration.

Such mitlgates are monitored by BOD, Finance and Credit Department, Internal Audit Departmant
Fair value of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Fair Value aof financial assets and liabilities risk management includes effective portfollo management by
Finance departmant which is monitored by BOD, and other high-level officials,

52 Capital Management

The capital management approach of the Bank is driven by its desire to maintain a strong capital base to
support the development of its business and to meet the regulalory capital requirements al all times.

As Capital is the centrepiece of the Bank's performance matrix, a sound capital management farms the very
core of the overall performance landscape to ensure that the Bank delivers on its objective of maximizing
the shareholder's value. The senior management of the Bank is engaged and responsible for prudent capital
managemenl al all times. In compliance with the regulatory requirement of increasing the capital base as
prescnbed by the Central Bank, the Bank is comfartable in meeting the minimum capital reguirements and
is strongly pasitioned to meel the performance benchmarks,

5.2.1 Qualitative Disclosure

Nepal Rastra Bank has directed the Banks to develop own internal policy, procedures and structures to
manage all material risk inherent in business for assessing capital adeguacy In relation fo the risk profiles
as well as strategies for malntaining capital levels. This includes basic requirements of having good
governance, efficien! process of managing all material risks and an effective regime for assessing and
maintaining adequate capital. The Bank has various BODs approved risk management policies for proper
governance. The Bank has developed a comprehensive ICAAP document which is subject to review every
year. The ICAAP has two major components: first is an internal process to identify measure, manage and
report nisks to which the bank is exposed or could be exposed in the future; and second [s an intemal
process to plan and manage a bank’s capital so as to ensure adequate capital. The Bank prepares the
ICAAP report annually complying with the NRB requirement. The report is reviewed and analysed by Risk
Management Committee and Board. The report is prepared as per BASEL Il norms considering various
adverse scenarlos. The Bank also conducts the stress testing on guarterly basis and Is reviewed by senior
management, Risk Management Commitiee and Board. The Bank in line with BASEL provisions and ICAAP
document assesses risk éxposures and allocated sufficient capital/cushion for perceived risks.

5.2.2 Quantitative Disclosure
Capital Structure and a Breakdown of its Compaonents:

v aifis ufadaq Too
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Tier 1 Capital and a breakdown of its components

Core Capital (Tier 1)

Paid Up Equity Share Capital

Irredeemable Non-Cumulative Preference Shares

Share Premium

Proposed Bonus Shares

General Reserves

Retained Earnings

Unaudited Current Year Cumulative Profit

Capital Redemption Reserve

Capital Adjustment Reserve/Debenture Redemption reserve
Capital Adjustment Reserve

Dividend Equalization Reserve

Pebenture Redemption Reserve

Capital Reserve (Created for loan waived as per Nepal Govt Direction)
Other Free Reserves (Special Reserve, Other reserves)

Less : Goodwill

Less: Intangible Assets

Less : Deferred Tax Assets

Less : Miscellaneous Assets not written off

Less : Investments in Equity in Licensed Financial Institutions
Less : Investments in equity of Institutions with excess of Limits
Less : Inyestments in equity of Institutions with Vested Interest
Less :Investments arising out of Underwriting Commitments
Less : Reciprocal Cross Holdings

Less: Other Deduction

Tier 2 Capital and a breakdown of its components
Supplementary Capital (Tier 2)

Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Shares
Subordinated Term Debt

Hybrid Capital Instruments

General Loan Loss Provision

Exchange Equalization Reserve

Investment Adjustment Reserve

Assets Revaluation Reserve

Additional Loan Loss Provision

Other Reservas

Total Capital Fund (Tier 1 and Tier 2)

Risk Weighted Exposure (Assets) (After Supervisor's Adjustment)
Capital Adequacy Ratio

Regulator Requirement

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Ratio

Leverage Ratio (regulatory requirement >/ 4%)

NPR ‘000
23,991,431
14,694,023

7,952,622
(3,437,189)
3,437,579
777,778
380,383
7,486

259,736

(31,844)

(49,142)

6,377,915

3,494,352

2,794,481
87,341
1,742

30,369,346
221,105,592
13.74%

11%

10.85%
7.47%
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* Deduclions from Capital : NPR. 80,986,082
» Total Qualifying Capital ¢ NPR. 30,369,345,925
+ Capital Adequacy Ratio . 13.74%

Summary of the bank's internal approach to assess the adequacy of its capital to support current and
future activities, if applicable:

Bank in its efferds to improve the capital adequacy ratio as prescribed by the requiator has implemented
a revised capltal plan, Besides, the bank has formulated ICAAP Policy and ICAAP Guldelings aimed at
impraving the Capital Adequacy position in compliance with BASEL-Ill Framework from FY 2073-74. The
task of systematic preparation and presentation of BASEL-|| report has been entrusted now with the Central
Finance Department of the bank. Currently, the bank's capital adequacy ratio stands at 13.74%.

2. Risk Exposures:

Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk The risk weighted exposures as
of Ashad end 2080 is given below:

S.No. Particulars NPR In ‘000’
1 Credit Risk 200,820,962
2 Operational Risk 10,707,285
3 Market Risk 264,790
4 Adjustment under Pillar 1| 9,312,555

Total 221,105,592

* Risk weighted exposures under each categories of Credit Risk:

S.No. Particulars NPR In ‘000"
1 Claims on other official entities
2 Claims on banks 1,873,223
3 Claims on domestic corporate & Securities firm 87,284,214
4 Claims on regulatory retail portfolio 31,013,869
5 Claims not satisfying granularity Criteria -
6 Claims Secured by Residential properties 6,104,262
7 Claims secured by commercial real estate 878,167
8 Past Due Claims 10,066,346
9 High Risk Claims 11,398,419
10 Trust Receipt Loan For Trading 1,434,405
11 Lending against securities (Bonds and Shares) 5,619,149
12 Investment in Equity of Institutions 4,706,272
13 Other Assets 15,860,633
14 Off Balance Sheet Items 24,582,001
Total 200,820,962
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Amount of NPAs (Both Gross and Net): NPR. In '000
SN Particulars Gross NPA  Loan-Loss Provision Net NPA
3.  Restructured/Reschedule Loan - - -

b, Substandard 1,204,931 276,197 928,734
c. Doubtful 2,182,108 865,495 1,316,614
d. loss 1,922,935 1,926,388 (3,453)

Total 1,204,931 276,197 928,734

* NPA Ratios:

Gross NPA to Gross Advances @ 2.85%

Net NPA to Net Advances 0 1.25%

*  Movement of Non-Performing Assets: NPR ‘000
Particulars This Quarter Previous Year Changes %
Non-Performing Assets 5,309,974 3,313,057
Non-Performing Assets (%) 2.85% 1:83% 60.27%

*  Write off of Loans and Interest Suspense:

Written off Loans and Interest Suspense:; No any Loan and Interest has been written off and recovered till
Ashad end of FY 2072-80.
Details of Subordinated Term Debt:

— Not applicable
— Details of Additional Loan Loss Provision:
— None

* Loan Loss provision and interest suspense movement:

Particulars Loan Loss Provision Interest Suspense
Opening balance 6,658,544 7,277,519
Write Back/off in the years -374,013 254,017
Addition In the year
Balance as at 16" July 2023 6,284,531 7,023,502
* Segregation of Investment Portfolio;
S.No. Investment Category Amount NPR. (000)
1 Held for Trading -
2 Held to Maturity (Government Securities) 53,339,299
3 Available for Sale(Equity) 3,606,884
a Investment in assoclates 2,736,953
Total 59,683,136
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3. Risk Management Function

The Bank is exposed to various types of matenal risks including credit, market, liquidity, operational, legal,
compliance and reputation risks. The objective of the risk management framework at the Bank is to ensure
that various risks are understood, measured and monitared and that the policies and guidelines established
to address these risks are strictly adhered to.

The Board of Directors has oversight on all the risks assumed by the bank. The Risk Management Committee
a board level sub-committee has been established to facilitate & fotused oversight of various risks. The
said committee reviews the risk management policies and guidelines, the bank's compliance with risk
management guidelines issued by NRB and status of implemented BASEL - Ill requirement by the bank.

The Bank has sel up a strong control and monitoring environment for comprehensive risk management at
all levels of operation by establishing an independent Risk Management Department which caters to the
current banking requirement of properily identifying and monitoring the risks apparent and inherent in the
business.

Measurament of Risks for Capital Adequacy Purpose:

Under Pillar 1 of the Unified NRB Directives, the bank currently follows Simplified Standardized Appreach for
Credit Risk, Basic Indicator Approach for Operational Risk and Nel Open Pasition appreach for Market risk.

A. Credit Risk:
Strategles and Process:

All credit related aspects are governed by Operation Manual-2 (Credit) and Credit Policy of NBL. These
documents outline the type of products that can be offered, customer categories, credit approval process
and limits. These documents are approved by the Board of Directors.

The Bank's main emphasis is on MSME credil. Different limits of lending power have been assigned at
branch level, division, department head level and the credit committee level. Evary aspec! relating o credit
such as procedure and documentation etc. are clearly defined in the Operation Manuat -2 and the Credit
Policy of the bank.

Pre-Sanction:

The branch managers have the authority to approve the credit within thair permissible limils after due
scrutiny of background of the promoter, nature of business, tumover in the account, other financial indicators,
income, collateral and security. Loans above the authority of branch are recommended to head office for
further decision.

Credit Risk Assessment Process:

Risk Management Depariment carries oul a comprehensive credil risk assessment progess that
encompasses analysis of relevant quantitative and qualitative information to ascertain credit rating of the
borrower. The credit rating process involves assessment of risk emanating from various sources such as
market risk, management risk, environmental risk, financial risk and security risk taking into consideration
as much as 30 sub-parameters for business lending and 20 sub parameters for retail lending under each of
these categories. Credit thresholds have been set for forwarding the credit files for risk rating before they are
submitted for approval in the credit committee by the concerned credit units.

Post Sanction Monitoring/ Follow up:

Concemed branches are required o oblain regular information of the business. In case of revolving loans,
the drawing power is checked commensurate with the existing level of stocks and working capital checked
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and verified al regular interval. The credit units at the Head Office are also required to prepare quarterly
credit report to submit at higher level as a part of formal monlitoring process.

B. Operation Risk:

Operational risk {s the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or falled internal processes, people or systems,
or from external events. Operational risk is inherent in the bank’s business activities,

The board level committees that undertake supervision and review of operational risk aspects are the Risk
Managemean! Commitlee and Audit Commitlee. The board and the risk commitlee review lhe operational
risk level and the material operational risk exposure. The Audit committee supervises audit and compliance
related aspects. Inspection and Internal Audit department on the other hand carries out audit according to
the audit plan and reports findings lo the Audit Commitlee.

Risk Arising from breakdown of Information and Operating System:

The bank has introduced new centralized software Pumori-I\V and has improved in its MIS infrastructure in
order o ensure the associaled operalional risks being brought down o an acceptably low level.

To safeguard the probable losses resulting from system failure or natural disaster, the bank has taken
following policies to minimize the risk:

a, Back up —All types of back up of all balances and head office are taken at the end of the day. The bank
has developed back up guidelines to manage (he various lypes back up syslem.

b. Disaster Recovery Site — The bank has established a disaster recovery site at Bhairahawa, which is
outside the Kathmandu valley considering the lower frequency of seismic activities.

c. Validation of Entry and Password control - There is a syslem of maker and checker for entry validation
before posting. Access autharity for data entry, update, modification and validation has been given on the
basis of levels of staffs.

d. Exceplion Reporling - The system craates exceplion repart as and when required.

Risk Arising from Procedural Lapses and Internal control:

The bank has defined procedure for each banking products and services in the Operation Manuals related
to banking transactions. Internal circulars are issued whenever required. Reporting by branches is regular.
Internal Audit of maximum branches is carried out each year,

Corporate Governance:

NRB Guidelines with respect to Corporate Governance are duly complied with. The bank has established a
Governance Unil to manage corporate governance related Issues.

C. Market Risk:
Invesiments

Currently, Bank has not made any investment for trading purpose. The investment In government securities
have been made to hold till maturity. The investment in equity of listed institutions has been held as available
for sale.

Foreign Exchange

The bank’s policy Is to maintain the net open position of converiible foreign currency where exchange rate
risk persists in matching position.
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D. Types of Eligible Cradit Risk Mitigation used and benefits availed under CRM:

The eligible collateral taken as benefits under CRM are margin money deposited with the bank against off
balance sheel exposures, Loan against Fixed deposits, Loan against Gold and Silver and Government
Securities. Under this provision a total of NPR. 21,918,160,238.52 has been deducted from total credit risk
as CRM.

53 Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities:

Armmount In NPR
Fair Value

Particulars m Amortized Cost -t PO Total
Financial Assets;

Cash and cash equivalents - 8,656,502,983 - 8,656,502,983
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - 19 748872262 - 19,748,872,262
lgl;":t:rg;:: with Bank and Financial 582,511,250 : 582,511,250
Derivative Financial Instruments 8,594,260 - - 8,594,260
Other Trading Assets 115,040,866

Loans and advances to B/Fls - 5,490 659,799 - 5,499,659,7499
Loans and advances to customers - 178,556,569,017 - 178,5586,569,017
Investment securities - 53,335,298,767 3,606,883,821 56,946,182,687
Investment in Assoclates 2,736,953.345 2,736,953,345
Other Financial assets - 1,713,794,732 o 1,713,794,732
Total financial Assets 123,635,126 268,097,208,809 6,343,837,266  274,449,640,334
Fi I ilitigs:

Due from customers - 244.513,999,703 - 244,513,999,703
Derivative Financial Instruments 8,541,000 8,541,000
Other Financial Liabilites - 3,009,857,463 - 3,009,857,463
Total financial Liabilities 8,541,000 247,523,857,166 - 247,532,398,166

54 Segment Analysis
54.1 General Information

The bank’s operation is managed centrally through Head Office. All strategic, financial and operational
policies and operations are controlled and directed from the head offica. The Bank operates in seven
provinces though has a single jurisdiction. The managemen! of the hank is on the basis of various types of
operations supporied by ancillary support services.

Bank has identified following segments as reportable;

a. Banking Segment invalves functions like collecting deposits and lending activities among other similar
activilies.

b. Treasury Segment involves short term and long-term investment activities like investing in T-Bills, Bonds,
Shares of companies elc.

c. Remittance Segment invalves activities of transferring / recelving funds locally and/or globally.

d. Government Segment Involves activities that are supportive to Government services like pension to
Government employees, and facllitating other such Government services.
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54.2 Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or loss

Total profit before tax for reportable segments 8,839,888,307 6,380,621,062
Profit before tax for other Segments {3,925,357,881) (2,523,829,894)

Elimination of inter-segment profit = =
Elimination of discontinued operation - .
Unallocated amounts: - 3
Other Corporate expenses 4,915,425,522 3,650,337,514
5.5 Share options and share based payment
There is no share-based payment made by the Bank,
56 Contingent liabilities and commitment

Litigation 15 a common occurrence in the banking industry due to the nature of business undertaken. The
Bank has formal controls and policies for managing legal claims. Once professional advice has been
obtained and the amount of loss reasonably estimated, the Bank makes adjustment to account for adverse
effect which the claims may have on its financial standing. Contingent liabilities on other matters have
already been disclosed In notes 4.28.

57 Related party disclosures

The related parties of the Bank which meets the definition of related parties as defined in "NAS 24 Related
Parties Disclosura™ are as follows:

i. Key Management Personnel (KMP)

The key management personnei are those persons having authority and responsibility of planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or Indirectly including any director. The key management
of the Bank Includes members of its Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and other higher-lgvel
employee of the Bank. The name of the key management personnel who were helding various positions in
the office during the year (As at Ashad end 2080) were as follows:

Name of the Key Management Personnel Post

Krishna Bahadur Adhikari Chief Executive Officer (Former)
Samata Panta (Bhatta) Acting Chief Executive officer
Laxman Paudel Assistant Chief Executive officer
Bishwo Ra| Baral Assistant Chief Executive officer
Prakash Kumar Adhikari Assistant Chief Executive Officer
Hom Bahadur Khadka Assistant Chief Executive Officer

57.1 Compensation to Key Management Personnel

The members of Board of Directors are entitled for meeling allowances, Salary and allowances are
provided to Chief Executive Officer and other member of Key Management Personnel (KMP). Salary and
Allowances paid to the Chief Executive Officer s based on the contract entered by the Bapk with him
whereas compensation paid to othar member of KMP are governed by Employees Byelaws and declsions
made by management time to time in this regard. In addition to salaries and allowances, non- cash benefits
like vehicle facility, subsidized rate employees’ loan, and termination benefits are alse provided to KMP.
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The delails relating lo compensation paid to key managemen! personnel (Diraclor's anly) were as follows:

Particulars Current Year
Director’s Fee (including all BoD level committee) 1,370,200
Other Expenses 1,002,794
Total 2,372,994

The details relating to compensation paid to key management personnel other than directors were as follows:

S.N. Name Position Remuneration

1 Krishna Bahadur Adhikari Chief Executive Officer{Former) 5,480,606
2  Samata Pant (Bhatta) Acting Chief Executive officer 2,512,154
3 Laxman Paude! Assistant Chief Executive officer 2,438,507
4 Bishwo Raj Baral Assistant Chief Executive officer 2,425,836
5 Prakash Kumar Adhikari Assistant Chief Executive Officer 2,423,064
6  Hom Bahadur Khadka Assistant Chief Executive Officer 2,438,192

Besides above remuneration, vehicle facilities were provided to key management personnel.

5.8 Merger and acquisition
No any Merger and acquisition has taken in the years presented,
59 Additional disclosures of non-consolidated entities
Thera are no further disclosures o be made as par NFRS requirements.
510 Events after reporting date.
Events after the reporting date are those events, favorable and unfavorable, that occurs between the end of
the reporting period and the date that the financial statements are authorized for Issue. All material events
that occurred after the reporting date have been considered and appropriately adjusted In line with NAS 10
—"Events After the Reporting Perlod”
511  Major Indicators
S.No Particulars Indicator FY 2075-76 FY 2076-77 FY2077-78 FY2078-79  FY 2079-80
1 Net Profit / Total Income % 2151 17.34 21.23 16.15 2021
Earning Per Share
3 Basic Eaming Per Share NPR 2699 20.68 2343 20.29 2339
Dilutad Earning Per Share NPR 26.99 20.68 23.43 20.29 23.39
4 Market Price Per Share NPR 336,00 245.00 443,00 268.00 249.00
5 Price [ Earning Ratio Times 1245 1204 18.90 13.21 10.64
6 Dividgend (Bonus Share} on share % 15.00 12.00 14,00 2.00 -
capital
7 Cash Dividend onshare capital 10.00 4,00 3.00 10.00
a Interest Income / Loans and 11.23 11.16 B.78 g9.54 14.09
Advances
9 Employee Expenses / Total Oper- % 27.85 22,53 2510 17.22 17.48

ating Expenses

A fes afirdss 2008
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10 Employee Expenses / Total de- % 1.74 1.54 139 1.17 158
posit and borrowing

11 Exchange Income / Total Income % 231 2.60 2.54 1.03 0.23

12 Staff Bonus / Total Employee % 11.10 8.03 10,23 8.28 5.97
Expenses

13 NetProfit / Loans and Advances % 2.81 2.26 219 1.70 3.02

14 Net Profit / Total Assets % 151 1.22 1.33 1.12 1.81

15 Total Loans and Advances / Total % 78.14 72.25 82.76 B6.97 72.65
Deposit

16  Totsl Operating Expenses /Total o 435 517 421 5.48 7.49
Assets

17 capital Adequs _
aj Common Equity Tier | Capital % 16.80 16.00 13.54 11.98 10.85
b} Cora Capital % 16.80 16.00 13.54 11.98 10.85
¢) Supplementary Capital % 0.93 1.01 3.26 3.07 2.89
d) Total Capital Fund % 16.80 17.01 16,80 15.05 13.74

18 Cash Reserve raho (CAR) % 4,06 4.53 4.19 349 7.97

19 Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR) 21.67 30.18 23.74 2277 30.92

20 Ligquidity 2873 29.54 26.81 22.98 3339

20 NPAS / Total Loans and Advances % 2.64 2.47 2.05 1.83 2.85

21 Base Rate % 7.98 6,99 5.73 7.53 9.92

22 Waighted Average Interest rate % 4.45 3.70 4.34 4.08 395

Spread

23 Book Net Worth (NPR. In Lakh) NPR 292,813 300,310 332,151 354,636 365,227

24 Total Shares No. 98,111,480 112,828,202 126,367,586 144,059,048 145,940,229
25 Total Employee No. 2,317 2,172 2,504 2,429 2,725
Others
Per Employee Income (NPR In 52.09 61.93 55.70 74.50 97.77
26 Lakh) NPR
Per Employea Business {NPR In 923.61 1,150.16 1,220.37 1,543.05 1,577.42
27 Lakh) NPR
28 Employee Expanses / Total % 17.21 16.54 16.87 13.55 1458
income :

5142  Valuation Hierarchy

Following tables demonstrates the valuation hierarchy of Bank's Assets and Liabilities. This fair value may
differ from the actual amount that may be recelved or paid on settlement, realization or maturity of those
Financial Assets and Liabilities.

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilitiss Measured at Fair Value
The fair value measurement hierarchy is as follows:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices In active markets for
identical asseis or liabilities.

Level 2 valuations are those with quatad prices for similar Instruments In active markets or quoted prices for
identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models where all
significant inputs are observable.
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Leval 3 portfolios are those where thera are unobsarvable inputs of the instruments. The inputs are nol
based on observable market data.

Fair Value Disclosure Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Particulsis: ~ Ason Ason As on ~ Ason As on ‘Ason
31.03.2080 32.03.2079  31.03.2080 32.03.2079 31.03.2080 32.03.2079

Quoted Equity Shares  2,114,859,224 1,566,039,362 -
Unquoted equity - 1,492,024,697 707,008,065 -

FV of Land - - -
Investment Properties - - 198,109,605 108,545,596

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, the Bank has assessed whether there exists objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assats not carried at fair value through profit or loss are impaired. A financial asset or @
group of financial assels Iis impaired when objective evidence demonstrates Lhat a loss event has occurred
after the Initial recognition of the assets, and that the |oss event has an impact on the future cash flows of
the assets that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets ara impaired can include significant financial difficulty of the borrower
or issuer, defaull or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by the Bank on terms
that the Bank would not otherwise consider, indications that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the
disappearance of an active market for a security, or other observable data relating to a group of assets such
as-adverse changes in the payment stalus of borrowers or issuers in the aroup, or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults in the group. In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a significant or
prolonged decline In its fair value below Its cost is abjective evidence of impairment.

in case of financial difficulty of the borrower, the Bank considers to restructure loans rather than take
possession of collateral. This may inveolve extending the payment arrangements and agreement of new loan
conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated, any impairment is measured using the original EIR as
calculated before the modification of terms and the loan is no longer considered past due. Management
continually reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that all criterla are met and that future paymeants are likely
to occur. The loans continue o be subject o an individual or collective impairmant assessment, calculaled
using the loan's onginal EIR.

Use of Carve Outs for Financial Assets
a, For Impairment Calculation

An entity shall assess al the end of each reporting period whelher there is any objective evidence that a
financial assel or group of financial assets measured at amortised cost is impaired. If any such evidence
exists, the entity shall apply paragraph 63 of NAS 39: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement,
to determine the amount of any Impairment loss unless the entity Is bank or financial institutions registered
as per Bank and Financlal Institutions Act, 2073, Bank and Financial Institutions shall measure impairment
loss on loan and advances as higher of amount derived as per prudential norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra
Bank and amount determined as per paragraph 63. However, bank and financial institutions shall apply
paragraph 63 of NAS 39: Financial Instruments; Recognition and Measurement to determine the amount of
impairment loss on financial assets other than loan and advances.

The bank for the financial years 2079/80 has assessed he impairment under NFRS impairment modal and

“aitas Tiaden 2008
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under NRB Directives. Since the Impairments under NRB directives are more than undar NFRS, the bank
has recognised impairment calculated under NRB directives. Following table bealow depicls the calculation

of impairment allowance as per NFRS and as per NRB Directives:

Impairment as per NAS 39.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Loans and advances to Customers & BFIs {excluding staff loan, AIR

and impairment) (A} 3

Less: 186,282,289,086" 180,828,069,367
impairment allowances (a + b) 6,284,531,453 5,174,215,587
Collective Allowances {a) 5,130,573,459 4,161,750,980

Individual Allowances (b) 1,153,957,994 1,012,464,607

Impairment as percentage of Total Loans and advances 3.37% 2.86%
Impairment Charge in Financial Statement

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Loan Loss Provision as per NRE Directive- Alternative 1 6,284,531,453 5,174,215,587

Impairment Loss as per NFRS-alternative 2 4,623,483,528 2,687,608,205

Loss provision recognized in financial statements higher of the two

altarnative) 6,284,531,453

Covid-19 Related Disclosure

5,174,215,587

5.15.1 Detail regarding Forbearance/relaxation provided in order to minimize the impact of COVID-19

B As of Ashad end 2080
Particulars No. of Customers  Amount (NPR.)
Accrued Interest Received after Ashad end 2080 till 15 Shrawan 2080 8140 25,47,04,675
Additional 0.3% Loan Loss Provision created on Pass Loan Portfolio 507,466,794
Extension of moratorium periad of loan provided to Industry or Project
under construction
Restructured/Rescheduled Loan with 5% Loan Loss Provision 11 3,696,007,785
Restructured/Rescheduled Loan with 1.3% Loan Lass Provision 1 811,815,200

Enhancement of Working Capital Loan by 20% to COVID affected borrowers
Enhancement of Term Loan by 10% to COVID affected borrowers

Expiry Date of Additional 20% Working Capital Loan (COVID Loan) extended
for upto 1 year with 5% provisioning

Expiry Date of Additional 10% Term Loan (COVID Loan) extended for upto 1
year with 5% provisioning

Time Extension provided for repayment of Principal and Interest for upto
two years as per clause 41 of NRB Dir2
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5.15.2 Detail of Refinance and Business Continuity Loan

. During FY 2079/80
Particulars | ke jna _
‘. No of customers Amount (NPR)
Refinance loan
Business Continuity Loan 2 70,000,000
5.15.3 Detail of Subsidized Loan
During FY 2079/80
Particulars L e 4 ,
No of customers Amount (NPR)
Subsidized Loan 6543 79,43,243,545

516 Comparison of Unaudited and Audited Financial Statements as of FY 2079/80 End
(Amount in NPR)
Reason for
Statement of Financial Position Variance Varlance
As per Unaudited
Assets Financial Fhmm In Amount In %
Cash and cash equivalent 8,656,502 982 8 656,502,983 0.00%
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 19,748,872,262 18,748,872,262 - 0.00%
Placement with Bank and < ; /
Financial Institutions 582,511,250 583,511,750 0.00%
Derivative Financial Instru- .594.260 8,594,260 . 0.00%
ments
Other Trading Assets 115,040,866 115,040,866 0,00%
Loan and advances to 8/FIs 5,499,659, 799 5,499,659,799 - 000%
L.oan and Advances to Cus- z . Adaitional
ypoils 178.888,687,236 178,556,%69,017  (332,118,218) -0.19% Adjustment
Investment Securities 58,380, 856,096 56,946,182 687 (1,443,673,400] -2.47% :ﬂﬁﬁ""’
Current Tax Assets 2.106,739,224 1,202.965,540  (803,773,684) 42.80% FPO Tox Adjustmznt
Investment in Subsidiaries . . 0,00%
Investment in Associates 2,736,953 345 2,736,953,345 0.00%
Investment Property 196,109,605 198,109,608 0.00%
. Additonal
Property and Equipment 13,240,522,071 13,363,622,774 123,100,703  0.93% |, dlustment
Sondvihand imangile 11,844,285 31,844,285 - 0.00%
Deferred Tax Assets . 0.00%
Other Assets 2,631,299 5748 8 088,169 165 156,864 586 5.29%
Total Assets 296,098,235,516 296,735,557,838 637,358,322  0.22%

s aifes wtaast 200% 5o




Due to Bank and Financial
Institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra-Banlk

Derivanve Financial Instruy-

ments

Deposits from Customers
Borrowings

Current Tax Liabllities

Provisions
Daferred Tax Liabilities

Other Liabilities

Debt securities lssued
Subordinated Liabilities
Equity

Share Capital

Share Premium
Retained Earnings

Reserves

Total equity attributable to

equity holders

Non-controlling Interest

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

Statement of Profit or Loss

Particulars

Interast Income

Interest expense

Net interast incoma

Fess and commission income

Fees and commission
expense

Net fee and commission
income

Net interest and commission
Income

1,240,552,176
70,000,000

8,541,000

244,548,8849,231

262,300,000

53,539,284
3,709,581,536

6,131,613,028

3,494,351,608

259,519,367,863

14,694,022,928

573,363,896
20,911,484 828

36,578,871,653

36,578,871,653

296,098,239,516

As per Unaudited

Financial
Statement

25,194,073,308
15,752,519,629
9,441,553,679
1,015,118,362

94,235,568

10,362,436,973

1,275.441,704
70,000,000

8,541,000

244,513,999,703

262,300,000

247,896,915
#,082,584,932
6,257,810,167
3,484,351,608

260,212,926,029

14,684,022,928

389,959
21,828,258,921

-35,522,671,808

36,522,671.808
296,735,597,837

As per Audited
Financial Statement
25,158,116,908
15,751,164,273
9,406,952,635
1,019,377,814
188,311,060
831,066,754

10,238,019,389

34,889,528

-

(34,889,528)

'

194,357,631
373,003,396
126,197,139

-

693,558,166

(972,873,937
916,774,093

(56,199,845)

(56,199 845)

637,358,321

artkrce:

In Amount
(35,956,400)

(1,355,356)
(34,601,044)
4,258,951
94,075,491
(89,816,540)

(124,417,584)

2.81%
0.00%

0.00%

-0.01%

0.00%
0.00%

363.02%
10.06%
2.06%
0.00%

027%

0,00%
0.00%

9996
a.38%
-0.15%
0.00%

-0.15%

0.22%

In%

-0.14%
0.01%
-0.37%
0.42%
99,83%
-9.75%

-1.20%

dure den IAES

NEPIL BANK LIMITED

e
e ——

Classification

Classification

Pravision for DI
Addl Pension

FMV Change Effect

Additonal Adjust-
ment

Proy for FPO Tix
97,72 Crare

Increase in FVR

Impact ofall
adjustments:

impact of 3il
adiustmems

Impact of all
sadjustments

Decrease in AIR
Income

Additianal
Adjustments

Agency incecme

Reclassification
Impact of above
adjustments:
Impact of above
adjustments
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Nt trading income
Other operating income

Impalrment charge/(reversal)
for loans and other losses

Net pperating Income
Operating expense
Other Operating expenses

Depreciation and
Amartisation

Operating Profit

Non operating income
Non operatiqg expense
Income tax expense
Current Tax

Deferred Tax

Profit/(loss) for the period

Other Comprehensive
income

Total Comprehensive income

78,642,010
305,095,037

10,746,174,019

1,175,089,414

9,571,084,605

3,779,167,340

1,023,245,540

360,390,068

4,408,281,657

76,346,495

4,484,628,153

1,246,660,726
{173,559,375)
3,411,526,801

(900,694,038}

2,510,832,763

78,642,010
309,231,092
10,625,892,491
1,114,348, 200

9,512,544,291

3,885,515,968
916,767,870
375,315,989
4,334,344,964

77,261,406

4,411,605,870

1,177,445,202

(203,418,327)
3,437,578,995
39,318,107

3,476,897,102

4,136,055

(120,281,529)
(61,741,215)

(58,540,314)

(106,477,671)
15,525,922
(73,937,194)

914,911

(73,022,283)

(69,215,524)

(29,858,952)
26,052,194
940,012,146

966,064,339

0.00%
1.36%

4»12”‘

-8.25%

-0.61%

2.81%
<10:41%
4.31%
-1.68%

1:20%

o

-5.55%
17.20%
0.76%

-104.37%

38.48%

Additianal
Adjustment

Impact of all
adjustmeants

Additonal
Impairmant

Impact of all
adjustments
Additianal

Adjustments

Reclassification

Lease Accounting.

Impact of all
adjustments

Additianal
Adjustments

Impact of all
Adjustments
Decrease in profit
Impact of all
Adjustments

Increase in
Impairmeant

Valuation of
Unquoted shares

Impact of all
Adjustments
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